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COMMONWEALTH BANK

SHARE OFFERING OF

3,000,000 COMMON SHARES OF
COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

(Incorporated in The Bahamas on April 20, 1960 under the Companies Act,
Chapter 279 of the Statute Laws of The Commonwealth of The Bahamas)

This is a prospectus for the subscription for common shares in COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED, a
Company incorporated in The Commonwealth of The Bahamas. This offer is made solely upon the terms and
conditions contained in this prospectus and no person has been authorized to give any information or to make
any representations with regard to Commonwealth Bank Limited other than through this prospectus. This
prospectus is issued in compliance with the provisions of the Securities Industry Act, 1999 for the purpose of
giving information to the public with regard to Commonwealth Bank Limited.

The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given
and confirm, having made all reasonable inquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no

other facts, the omission of which would make any statement in the prospectus misleading.

A copy of this prospectus together with all relevant consents, contracts and reports has been filed with the
Securities Commission of The Bahamas under the Securities Industry Act, 1999. Such filing shall not be
deemed to indicate approval of the contents of this prospectus by the Commission nor create any liability of
the Commission nor of the Government of The Commonwealth of The Bahamas in respect of this prospectus
nor in respect of any statement contained herein. The Commission has not checked and will not check the
accuracy of the statements made and accepts no responsibility for this prospectus or for the financial
soundness of the issuer or the value of the securities concerned.

Publication of this prospectus or allocation or trading in the securities described in this prospectus as being
offered may commence only after the registration of the prospectus by the Commission.

Documents delivered to the Commission and attached to the copy so delivered are set out on page 62.

This prospectus is intended for use only in The Commonwealth of The Bahamas and is not to be construed as

a public offering of any shares herein referred to outside The Bahamas.

This offer, which opens 9:00 a.m. Monday April 3, 2000 and closes Friday April 28. 2000 at 5:00 p.m..

is available to all eligible investors as defined in this prospectus.

THE MINIMUM TOTAL SUBSCRIPTIONS WHICH THE DIRECTORS REQUIRE IN
ORDERTO PROCEED WITH THE OFFERING SHALL BE ONE (1) MILLION SHARLS.
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COMMONWEALTH BANK

ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

ffffgfhh‘ investors include Bahamian Citizens, Permanent Residents with an unrestricted 1 ight to work, Trusts designated resident
3 [ . 3/ . 7 P P N .

for exchange control purposes, and Bahamian (,mnparm-s whoily owned by Bahamians. Other interested investors may subscribe
for common shares but their application would require prior approval from T'he Central Bank of The Bahamas. No minors are

eligible as shareholders.

The offer is made only to the following eligible investors:

If an Individual:
1. The applicant is 18 years of age or older; and

2. The applicant is a citizen of The Bahamas or holds a permanent residency permit with the unrestricted right to work in
The Bahamas or is granted approval as an investor in the Bank by The Central Bank of The Bahamas; and

3. The applicant is not applying for the shares as nominee for any other person, corporation, trust or fund that would not

be an eligible investor.

If a Corporation:

1. The applicant is incorporated under the laws of The Bahamas and is resident for exchange control purposes; and

[E¥]

The applicant is wholly owned by individuals who are citizens of The Bahamas and/or permanent residents with the
unrestricted right to work or is granted approval as an investor in the Bank by The Central Bank of The Bahamas; and

3. All necessary corporate actions have been taken to authorize the purchase of the shares.

=

The applicant is not applying for the shares as nomince for any other person, corporation, trust or fund that would not

be an eligible investor.
2

If a Trust or Pension Fund:

Beneficiaries of the trust or pension fund are citizens or permanent residents of The
Bahamas with the unrestricted right to work or Bahamian resident companies owned
by them and/or any other cligible trust or pension fund which is granled appr()\'al as
an investor in the Bank by The Central Bank of The Bahamas; and

Trustees of the trust and managers of the pension fund represent that they have the
necessary power and all requisite actions have been taken to enable them to eftect the

purchase of the shares.

3. The applicant is not applying for the shares as nominee for any other person,
Ying )

corporation, trust or fund that would not be an eligible investor.
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INTRODUCTION

This share offering is intended to offer a greater number of Bahamians an opportunity to
participate in the ownership of the Bank, which has achieved its success by prudent management
and unwavering commitment to its customers, staff and the community since becoming a wholly

owned Bahamian Bank in 1984 .

The Directors have frcqucntl}' been cncouraged to make a public offcring by persons in authority
and by knowlcdgeablc investors. The Directors have steadfastly held the view that the Bank should
only undertake a public share offering after demonstrating sustained gmwth and profitability over

both expanding and contracting economic cycles.

This offering of 3 million common shares represents approximately 10% of the outstanding
common shares as shown on page 9. In order to make this offering possible, the three largest
shareholders of the Bank (“the selling shareholders”) agreed to sell a portion of their shares back
to the Bank. The proceeds of this offering will be used exclusively to fund the purchase of the

shares acquired from the sel]ing sharcholders.
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DEFINITIONS

In this document, unless the context otherwise requires, the following

expressions have th

“The Bahamas”

“Commonwealth Bank, Bank

or Company”
“Capital /Asset ratio”

“Central Bank”

“Common shares™ or “shares”

“Common dividend payout ratio”

“Dividend vield”

“Earnings per share™

“Net income™

“Net income available to

common shareholders”

“Net interest margin”
£

“Price/carnings multiple”

“Return on assets”

“Return on equity”

“Return on investment™

“Treasury shares”

“S or BS”

e meanings assigned to them!

The Commonwealth of The Bahamas.

Commonwealth Bank Limited and/or its subsidiary companies.

The amount calculated using a numerator being sharcholders’ equity; and a denominator being total assets.
The Central Bank of The Bahamas.

Common shares of par value $0.06 cach in the Bank,

The amount calculated using a numerator being common share dividends and a denominator being net
income available to common shareholders.

The percentage calculated using a numerator being actual or projected dividends paid per share in a fiscal
period; and a denominator being the offering share price.

Earnines per share is computed by dividing the net income, after deducting dividends declared on
AP 13 ) £ _ g
preference shares, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the vear.

An amount being actual or projected net income in a fiscal period.

Net income after deduction of preference share dividends that is available for distribution to the common

sharcholders.

The amount calculated using a numerator being net interest income less preterence share dividend and a
denominator being total assets.

The amount calculated using a numerator being the offering share price; and a denominator being actual
or projected operating income per share.

The percentage calculated using a numerator being actual or projected net income available to common
shareholders; and a denominator being the actual or projected average total assets of the Bank at the end
of the respective fiscal period.

The percentage calculated using a numerator being actual or projected net income available to common
sharcholders; and a denominator being the actual or projected total average equity of the Bank at the end

of the respective fiscal period.

The percentage calculated using a numerator being actual or projected ecarnings per share; and a
denominator being the offering share price.

The shares redeemed by the Bank from selling sharcholders and offered hereby through this share offering.

The legal currency of The Bahamas.
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SUMMARY OF SHARE OFFERING

THE BANK
[
|

Commonwealth Bank Limited is incorporated in The Commonwealth of The Bahamas and is licensed by the Ministry of Finance to carry

out banking business under the provisions of the Banks and Trust Companies Regulation Act, 1965 as amended,

The principal business of the Bank is that of providing full service personal banking, Services include acceptance of savings, fixed and demand
deposits, provision of mortgages and consumer financing and the sale ol foreien exchange. The Bank has three wholly-owned subsidiarics;
Laurentide Insurance and Mortegage Company Limited (“Laurentide™), which provides credit life insurance in respect of the Bank’s |

borrowers, C. B. Securities Ltd., which operates as an investment company, and C. B. Holdings Ltd. which is inactive at this time.

I'he material contracts of the Bank are included on page 60.

Number of Shares Offered 3,000,000
Price per share $6.00

Total Proceeds $18,000,000

Minimum Investment $300 (50 Shares)
Total Outstanding Shares after Offering 31,153,332
Percent offered 9.63%

2001 2000 1999
PriCC/Earnings Multiple 13.33x 13.95x 14.63x

Dividend Yield 5.33% 5.00% 4.67%

nk has in excess of 900 sharcholders. The Directors hope to substantially expand the current sharcholder base as a result of this offering.

subsequent issue will knowingly be made which could effectively alter the control of the Bank without the prior approval of the common

rs in general meeting and the approval of The Central Bank of The Bahamas and the Securities Commission of The Bahamas,
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net pre sceeds to be received by the Bank from the r)l'il-l'ing (after issue expensces pl‘n]u'tcd at $600,000) are estimated to be appruxinmu‘l}

§17.400,000. The Bank intends to use the net proceeds of the olfering to pay for the common shares purchased from the selling sharcholders,

During 1999, the Bank cxpamlvd its L'A}vilal base nignilicantl_v which saw its sharcholders’ equity grow to over $100 million. Upon the
completion of this offering, the Bank’s ulpiml position will be further \ll‘cnglhcnuL bringing sharcholders’ equity to over S 103 million. The
Directors believe that the Bank is now the strongest Q‘.’l])i(&]i/t‘(l fully Bahamian owned business entity in The Bahamas. As a result of this capital
l'L‘l)iL'l]i.\lll‘lh‘l]l, the Directors of the Bank are of the opinion that the Bank has adequate working capital to implement its medium term

objectives. Hence, there is no need to raise additional funds for the Bank during this offering.

The plan of distribution is set forth on page 59.

SHARE CAPITAL

Fhe Bank has an authorized share capital of 569,500,000 divided as follows:

Share Type Authorized Shares Par Value Authorized Capital
Common 75,000,000 s 0.06 $ 4,500,000
Class A Preference 30,000 $500.00 515,000,000
Class B Preference 10,000 $500.00 $ 5,000,000
Class C Preference 50,000 $100.00 § 5,000,000
Class D Preference 100,000 $100.00 510,000,000
Class E Preference 100,000 $100.00 $10,000,000
Class F Preference 100,000 5100.00 510,000,000
Class G Preference 100,000 $100.00 510,000,000
TOTAL $£69,500,000

ar value and premium on issued shares are stated on pages 47 and 48 of the Audited Financial Statements.

Each common share ranks pari passu with each other as to mpilal, dividends and rights upon Hqui(lalicm and carries one
vote at all sharcholders’ mectings. Preference shares carry no voting right,\'!‘hc other rights attached to cach class of the
preference shares can be found in Note 9 to the financial statements on page 47 and the General Information section on
page 58. Pursuant to Article 31 of the Articles of Association of the Bank, the rin__{hh attached to any class of shares may
not be varied without a resolution of the holders of such shares passed by at lcast three-fourths of the holders of the issued

shares of that class present in person or by proxy at a meeting of such holders.

Table 1 shows the historical and pro forma Sharcholders’ Equity Account, assuming full subscription of this oltering.

e

Table 1 (5 000's)

May 1, 2000 December 31, 1999 December 31, 1998
Share ('.\pilnl S 62,860 $62,680 % 7,875
Share Premium 17,270 - 9,657
General Reserve - - 10,000
Retained Earnings 23,643 22,143 16,449
TOTAL EQUITY $103,773 S84,823 $43,981
Book Value per Share S 1.37 S 0.85 8 1.22
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PRICE HISTORY AND DIVIDEND PolLICYy

1 mmon shares and several classes of preference shares have been publicly traded in the local over-the-counter (OTC) market since 1994, Prior to that time

there was no public market for the Bank's shares. The following table sets forth the approximate high and low sales prices of the Bank's common shares for the

PET noted.
Offer Indications
1999 §7.00 $5.41
1998 $5.89 $4.90
1997 $5.89 $3.45
source: Colina Financial Group

ild be noted that the above prices are indications only ¢ ympiled from various public sources and do not reflect private transactions. There are no official

or closing prices available.

Effcctive November 26, 1999, the Bank, in preparation for this share offering, purchased the following common shares as noted below:
g g

Selling Shareholder No. of Shares
l.a(l) Margaret Symonette 1,600,000
Rupert Winer Roberts, Jr. 900,000
Diana Cecil Symonette 500,000
Total 3,000,000

These shares were purchased for a total consideration of $17.85 million, or an average price of §5.95 per share before expenses. The purchase price represented
int of 12//% on the mid-market price reported on the previous day by local market makers. The Directors have agreed to offer these shares to the public

zt 3600 per share, which represents the Bank’s aggregate cost,

isaction was approved by the Central Bank and paid for by taking a special charge to the General Reserve and Share Premium accounts. Upon completion

ublic offering, the Bank's capital accounts will be replenished by crediting Share Premium with the excess proceeds over par value (Sce Table 1.

1k proposes to pursue a common dividend pay-out ratio of 60% to 75% of net income, subject to future capital requirements and liquidity of the Bank.
Th uency and dividend pay-out ratio is at the discretion of the Directors. The Bank has consistently paid quarterly dividends since 1984, The financial

rmation presented on page 26 shows the dividends paid and projected.

COMPETITION

I nking business is highly competitive and the profitability of the Bank will depend principally upon its ability to compete and grow its market share within

The Bahamas. Commonwealth Bank competes with other commercial banks, mostly Canadian and British owned, credit unions, finance companies and certain

1-tinancial entities such as retail stores that maintain their own credit programs. The Bank has been able to compete effectively with other financial
£ )

0

ns by emphasizing customer service, including decentralized decision-making on loans, establishing long term customer relationships and building

r lovalty based on a fundamental beliet in the working Bahamian.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

z institutions in The Bahamas are regulated and supervised by The Central Bank of The Bahamas. Additionally, banks must operate in compliance with the

rovisions of The Bank Act, 1909, and The Banks and Trust Companies Regulation Act, 1965, The Insurance Act, 1969, The Companies Act, 1992 and

Money Laundering (Proceeds of Crime Act), 1996 and regulations thercunder,

; mber 19, 1999, the Protection of Depositors Act, 1999 became law, As a registered member, deposit accounts at the Bank up to B$50,000 are insured

Dieposit Insurance Corporation.
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INVESTMENT RISKS

Prior to making an investment decision, prospective investors should review the prospectus and consider the suitability
of this investment in light of their personal circumstances, If there is any doubt, they should seck independent
professional investment and legal advice.

Risk Factors to consider include:

6.

\ctual operating results may differ substantially from the financial projections presented in this prospectus.

The Bank's projected earnings depend to a large extent on the cconomy of The Bahamas, which is sensitive to numerous lactors

that are bevond the Bank’s control, such as general economic conditions and maeroeconomic policies of the Government ol The

Bahamas.

Investors should be aware that the market value of their investment mayv go down as well as up. Historical results and profitability
do not guarantee [uture !)t']'lill'!ildﬂ( ¢,
The dividend policy note d on page 11 is based on current financial conditions, levels of liquidity and capital requircments.’l he

Dircctors can vary the rate of dividend payments with respect to common shares at anv time.

I'he Bank is dependent upon certain key management personnel whom it considers important to its future success. The loss ol
such individuals or other members of senior management could have an adverse impact on the future performance of the Bank

The Bank has employment agreements with these officers and they participate in the Employee Share Option Plan as deseribed

on pages 59 and 60.

Until there is an established securitics ¢ xchange for secondary trading, investors may not be able to liquidate their holdings at the

prices quoted by local market makers.
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SUBSCRIPTION PROCEDURES

The subscription period shall begin on Monday April 3, 2000, and will close on Friday April 28, 2000. The Board reserves the right to extend

or cancel this offer at its discretion,

Eligible investors, as defined on page 5, should complete the detachable subscription form at the end of this prospectus and deliver it,

togcther with payment, to:

Any Commonwealth Bank Limited branch

East Bay Branch

The Plaza Branch, Mackey Street
Town Centre Mall Branch

Oakes Field Branch

Cable Beach Branch

Waulff Road Branch

The Mall Branch, Freeport
Lucava Branch, Freeport

Abaco Branch, Marsh Harbour

or

Colina Financial Advisors Ltd.
lmi Floor, Goodmans Bav Corporate Centre
West Bay Street

Nassau, Bahamas

Copices of this prospectus may be obtained at all of the above locations.

Subscriptions must be for a minimum of 50 shares and for additional multiples of 50 shares therealter.

Acceptable forms nl‘p.l\'nwm shall be clluquv, bank draft, postal order or dircct debit.
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DIRECTORY OF ADVISORS TO THE OFFERING

Financial Advisors, Escrow Agent and Registrar and Transfer Agent
Colina Financial Advisors Ltd.

lml Floor, Goodmans Bav Corporate Centre

West Bay Street

Nassau, Bahamas

Te1: (242) 356 6692 Fax: (242) 356 7375

Placement Agents

First Bahamas Capital Ltd.

2”" Floor, Goodmans Bay Corporate Centre
West Bay Street

Nassau, Bahamas

Tel: (242) 356 3661 Fax: (242) 356 3677

Counsel and Attorneys and Registered Office of the Bank
Graham, Thompson & Co

Sassoon House

Shirlev Street

Nassau, Bahamas

Tel: (242) 322 4130 Fax: (242) 328 1069

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants
Dehands House, Centreville

Nassau, Bahamas

Tel: (242) 302 4800 Fax: (242) 322 3101

Public Relations
Diane Phillips & Associates
Suite 503, The Pilot Housce

Nassau, Bahamas

Tel: (242) 394 0677 Fax: (242) 394 0688

ExecuTivE OFFICE OF THE BANK

Commonwealth Bank Limited
The Plaza

Mac kt‘_\ Street

Nassau, Bahamas

Tel: (242) 394 7373 Fax: (242) 394 5807
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HisTory or 1111l B gy

“IT 1S OUR CUSTOMERS WHO DESERVE OUR GREATEST APPRECIATION AND IT IS TO THEM WE PLEDGE OUR

CONTINUED COMMITMENT TO HARNESS AND GROW THEIR FINANCIAL POWER.”
T. B. Donarpson C.B.E.

Chairman

Commonwealth Industrial Bank was founded in 1960 as a subsidiary of the Laurentide Financial {‘:nl‘pul'nlinn Limited, a Canadian company.

he doors opened with three employees; the office was located in the back of a furniture store; files and supplies were stored in a ¢ hest of
drawers. The l\[\i\l\ desk was a burcau top.
Despite the no-frills ottice appointments, the principle on which the new bank was founded was revolutionary in

The Bahamas: to become a financial partner to the working Bahamian. For the first time, Bahamians without a lot

of means could borrow money to buy furniture, put a child through school, take a vacation or purchase an

automobile.

[t was a beliel in the integrity of the working Bahamian that set the stage for Commonwealth Bank's evolution. Out
of that belief and that original lending institution has grown one of the most |‘.»n\\vt'1li§ financial institutions in the

nation with nine full-service branches, more than 400 n‘mluﬁu\ ees and over a halt billion dollars in assets.

Commonwealth Bank as we know it today was actually launched in 1984 when it became fully Bahamian owned.

he new ownership, a revitalized Commonwealth Bank was infused with energy while retaining its founding commitment to its
rs. Dramatic growth followed. Two yvears after Bahamianization, all branches had been automated. The first Bahamian credit card,
was launched in Freeport in 1984 and introduced in Nassau in 1986. In 1990, Commonwealth Bank was approved by The Central Bank

Bahamas to be a clearing bank. At the same time the Bank became an Authorized Dealer. This completed the transformation tfrom a savings

n institution to a complete service bank.

‘owing customer base. Newer branches were outthitted to

pled as the Bank grew from three to nine branches to accommodate a g

tter customer service,

984, the Bank had total assets of $17 million. As of December 31, 1999, total assets exceeded $500 million. Today, the Bank boasts a

stomer base of more than 56,000.

nwealth Bank has led the way in:

. stic eredit

s g residents to pa s (Customs duti vith a it « |

- I banking hour 1 MM Imodate tomers

. terized banking, allowing complete inter-branch services, includi ctworking
| “ N \ P ) Ii

products to sustain and grow customer lovalty, its

1 Bank was developing new services and

>

t t to personnel ‘E"“'J"I"“"'“ was reinforced and \1i|»|n=|'1r<| by training and incentives

tment to stafl, to innovative products and to customer satistaction has helped (€ ommonwealth Bank evolve into the largest

| ever has it lost \]-__rhl ol the pring ml\- on which it was founded: A belief in

n in the nation, Yet 1
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Commonwealth Bank's goal is to provide complete personal banking services for its customers.
g g

The Bank has a history of innovation and sees technology as an enabler in providing customer service and products. Over
. ) &) £
| the past three years, the Bank has invested more than 85 million dollars in the upgrading and expansion of computer

equipment. It now has to leverage that investment into improved services.

Response to Competition
While competition is becoming ever more fierce, the Bank has established itself as the lowest cost provider of credit cards, mortgages and auto

loans in The Bahamas. The Bank is also proud of its ability to offer the highest rates on savings and certificates of deposit.

Diversification
The Bank is always sensitive to n|)‘|mrtunitic.~. to cxpaml its po.\iti(m in the financial services market. However, such L'.\‘pansiun must be consistent

with the overall strategy of the Bank.

Expnnsiun
The Bank has branches in New Providence, Grand Bahama and Abaco and recently opened its ninth branch, located on Wulff Road in Nassau.
Entry cost into new geographic markets is high; part of the challenge for the future is reducing that cost to allow the Bank to serve additional

family islands.

. . b} ’
Additional Products
The Bank is pursuing the introduction of Automated Banking Machines to expand the availability of banking services to its customers and
enhancing Suncard services. At the same time, the Bank is working with the Clearing Banks Committee, investigating the possibilities of

establishing a debit card network in The Bahamas.

Bahamian Community Commitment

The Bank plays a major role in the community. It was a major donor toward hurricane relief and has been a consistent supporter of charitable
organizations and sponsor of national events. The Bank has taken a position of promoting the preservation of the historic heritage of The Bahamas
through its production of videos in conjunction with The Bahamas National Trust and most recently with the Historic Bahamas Millenium

Calendar and Art Show.

A 5 -
Commitment to Staff

As a service provider the Bank is committed to providing the most favourable environment for its employees. It does this through competitive
remuncration and benefits and, in 1999, undertook a major training campaign to upgrade emplovee skills in conjunction with the University of

North Carolina and the University of Western Ontario,
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PRINCIPAL AND SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

e tables below set forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of the common shares of the Bank as at the date of this prospectus and as
Jrusted to reflect the sale of shares offered hereby. Except as otherwise indicated, the persons or entities listed below have voting and investment power with
~spect to direct, indirect and related party sharcholdings.

solc 11 shows the pro forma ownership structure and number of common shares outstanding as a result of this offering, assuming full subscription.

Table 11

Sharcholder Pre-Offer Percent Owned  Post-Offer  Percent Owned
Lad)‘ Margaret Symonette 6,400,000 22.73% 6,400,000 20.54%
Rupert Winer Roberts, Jr. ; 3,875,860 13.77% 3,875,860 12,44%
Diana Cecil Symonette 2,189,284 7.78% 2,189,284 7.03%
\’aughn William Theodore Higgs 918,090 3.26% 918,090 2.95%
Theodore Brent Symonette 729,101 2.59% 729,101 2.34%
Roland Craig Symonctte 713 2.55% TLT 13 2.30%
Bahamas First Holdings Limited * 711,000 D.53% 711,000 2.28%
Ra]cigh [. Butler 662,368 2.35% 662,368 2.13%
Franklyn Augustus Butler 648,703 2.30% 648,703 2.08%
Milo B. Butler & Sons Ltd. ** 569,635 2.02% 569,635 1.83%
chmining Sharcholders (over 900) 10,732,160 38.12% 10,732,160 34.45%
Treasury Shares being offered = 3,000,000 9.63%
Totals 28,153,332 100.00% 31,153,332 100.00%

A complete Shareholders’ Register as of March 31, 2000 is available for inspection at the Offices of Graham,
Thompson & Co., and Colina Financial Advisors Ltd.

*Bahamas First Holdings Limited is beneficially owned by:

Sharcholder No. of Shares Percent Owned
Diana Cecil Symonette 2,963,250 10.50%
Lyvndhurst Investments Ltd. 1,763.312 6.25%
Maria Chisnall 1,656,910 5.87%
Bilnev Investments Limited 1,578,447 5.59%
Rumoso Ltd. 1,482,946 5.25%
Aline McLaughlin 1,464,000 5.18%
Wilshe Ltd. 1,456,294 5.16%
Madeira Holdings Ltd. 1,119,205 3.96%
John A. G. Dunkley 1,022,399 3.62%
Yogar Holdings Ltd. 801,168 2.84%
Other Shareholders 12,923,504 45.78%
Totals 28,231,435 100.00%

=*Milo B. Butler & Sons Ltd. is beneficially owned by:

Shareholder No. of Shares Percent Owned
Franklyn Augustus Butler 3 429
Eight individuals in joint tenancy: 4 58%

Basil N. Butler, Asa C. Butler, A. Joseph Butler,
Edna G. Butler, Matthew McD. Butler,

Raleigh 1. Butler, Juanita M. Butler,

Milo B. Butler, Jr.

Totals 7 100.00%
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
INcLUDING EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Management Team

Commonwealth Bank Limited has assembled a team of experienced professionals to manage the Bank on behalf of its sharcholders.

The backgrounds of the senior management team are highlighted below:

[imothy Baswell Donaldson, C.B.E

Executive Chairman

Timothyv Baswell Donaldson, C.B.E., is former Ambassador of the Commonwealth of
The Bahamas to the United States of America and is former non-resident Ambassador
of The Bahamas to Columbia and Mexico. Mr. Donaldson serves as Chairman of the

Securities Commission of The Bahamas.

After graduating from Government High School in Nassau, he went to the United States

to pursue further education, carning his B.A. and Masters degree in Mathematics. Mr.

Donaldson returned to The Bahamas where he began his public service carcer as
Assistant Secretary at the Ministry of Finance. In 1974 he became the first Governor of The Central Bank of The Bahamas
and served in that position until 1980, when he resigned to enter the private sector. He has held numerous directorships.

Mr. Donaldson has been a director of Commonwealth Bank for a total of eight vears.

Mr. Donaldson is a Bahamian citizen born on January 2, 1934. P.O. Box N-7112, Nassau, Bahamas.

William Bateman Sands, Jr. President
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Mr. Sands has been with Commonwealth Bank for 29 years, serving in various capacities in
I:I‘L‘L‘I)( rt and Nassau before in'ing named President in 1997, A gl‘n(lll.’llc of the l[ni\L'I‘\il_\' of
Western Ontario, Richard Ivey Business School, Mr. Sands has been District Manager,
Nassau, Vice President, (Jpvralion.\ Senior Vice President and Executive Vice President and

Managing Director of Commonwealth Bank. He has participated in the decision-making for

nearly three decades as the Bank grew from a lending institution to a major financial force.

He has been on the Board of Directors of Commonwealth Bank since 1990.

Mr. Sands is a Bahamian citizen born on May 13, 1952, P.O. Box CB-11109, Nassau, Bahamas.

[an Andrew _lvnnings - Senior Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer and Directo1

Mr. Jennings has held a number of senior level positions since joining Commonwealth Bank
as Financial Controller in 1984. He is currently Senior Vice President and Chiel Financial
Ofticer. Born in the United Kingdum, Mr. Jennings holds a B.Sc. (Economics) from the
University of Wales and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in lf|1g|dm|
& Wales. Mr. Jennings has been on the Board of Dircctors of Commonwealth Bank since
1997.

Mr. Jennings is a British citizen and Permanent Resident of The Bahamas born on November

4, 1955. PO. Box S§-5541, Nassau, Bahamas.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
INcLUDING EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Trevor Bryan Thompson - Senior Vice President,

C(n'p()ralo Se(‘:‘cl;n"\ and Director

Mr, Trevor Thompson has held numerous senior management and administrative positions in
his 35-vear carcer with Commonwealth Bank. In 1974, he was appointed Vice President of
Finance and, four vears later, was named Vice President and District Manager with
rv.\‘p()nsil)ilit'\‘ for all branches in The Bahamas. In 1986, Mr, Thompson was .Jl)p()inu‘d Vice

President, Administration. In 1992, he was named Senior Vice President and Corporate

Secretary. Mr. Thompson has been on the Board of Directors of Commonwealth Bank for

29 vears,

Mr. Thc)ml)son is a Bahamian citizen born on ]u]_\ 15, 1943, . O. Box 55-6950, Nassau, Bahamas.

Shirley Georgann Cartwright

Vice President, Operations

Mrs. Shirley Cartwright has more than 28 years banking experience. She joined

Commonwealth Bank in 1987 and has since held various management positions, belore
£

being a])]auimcd Assistant Vice President, Operations in 1993, In 1997, she was appointed

Vice President, Operations with overall responsibility for administrative and support

functions including Head Office Administration, Marketing, Branch Operations and
Information Systems. Mrs. Cartwright has participated in numerous banking and management courses both locally and

abroad.

Mrs, ('art\\'l‘ig]lt is a Bahamian citizen born on Febru.lry 11, 1950. PO. Box S5-6263, Nassau, Bahamas.

Charlene Rozetta Paul Vice President and

Cl'nup Financial Controller

Mrs. Charlene Paul has 14 vears experience in the accounting field. She held the post of
Senior Manager at an international accounting firm before joining Commonw calth Bank in
1996 as Vice President of Audit & Inspection. In 1997 she was appointed Vice President and

Group Financial Controller. Mrs. Paul is a member of The Bahamas Institute of Chartered

Accountants and Fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, United Kingdom.

Mrs. Paul is a Bahamian citizen born on December 17, 1963. PO, Box SS-19278, Nassau, Bahamas.

C"dl't)l(‘ Sil]l()llt‘ Sl['il(‘hilll Vi('t" })l't‘*ji(l(‘!ll.

Alldi! and IHS])(,‘(‘[’i(JIl

Mrs. Carole Strachan has held a number of positions in financial institutions in The Bahamas
and the United States, including Financial Controller and Auditor with an international
accounting firm. A Certified Public Accountant and Certified Information Systems Auditor,

she joined Commonwcalth Bank in 1998 as Vice President of Audit & Inspection.

Mrs. Strachan is a member of The Bahamas Institute of Chartered Accountants.

Mrs. Strachan is a Bahamian citizen born on January 31, 1965. PO. Box N-999, Nassau, Bahamas.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
INcrLubpIiNG ExEcuTivE DIRECTORS

Anthea Bernadette Delaney - Vice President,

Human Resources and T‘uining

Ms. Anthea Delaney has 20 years managerial and banking experience in Nassau and New

York. A former Director and Senior Manager of a major offshore bank, Ms. Delaney joined

Commonwealth Bank in May 1999 as Vice President of Human Resources and Training, She
) £

holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Finance and Personnel Management from

Concordia University, Montreal, Canada. Ms. Delanev is an active member of The Bahamas

Institute of Bankers.

Ms. [)vlanc.\' is a Bahamian citizen born on Al)ril 29, 1959. P.O. Box N-9733, Nassau, Bahamas.
John Rupert Roberts - Assistant Vice President, Operations

Mr. J. Rupert Roberts has 30 years commercial banking experience, including 12 years at
Commonwealth Bank. He has held several senior management positions with the bank
im'lucling Area Manager, Northern Bahamas. In 1997, Mr. Roberts was app(nint(‘d Assistant
Vice President, Operations with responsibility for commercial and mortgage lcn(ling. Mr.

Roberts has attended numerous banking and management courses both locally and abroad.

Mr, Roberts is a Bahamian citizen born on Mav 6, 1955. P.O. Box S5-5541, Nassau, Bahamas.

Mavis Ann Burrows — Assistant Vice President

and Financial Controller

Mrs. Mavis Burrows has more than 23 years commercial and offshore I)JHLII]” experience,
including 13 years at Commonwealth Bank where she has held various management
positions. She served as Financial Controller, before being appointed to Amhlanl Vice
President and Financial Controller in 1999, Mrs. Burrows has attended banking and

management courses both locally and abroad.

Ms. Burrows is a Bahamian citizen born on March 26, 1956. PO. Box §5-6067, Nassau, Bahamas.
Silbert Anthony Cooper - Assistant Vice President, Operations

Mr. Silbert Cooper has had 23 vears of commercial banking experience, including 14 years

at Commonwealth Bank where he has held various management positions, most quntl\ as

Senior Branch Manager, East Bay Street. In 1999, Mr. Cooper was appointed Assistant Vice
g , |

President, Operations with responsibility for consumer lending and automobile dealer

programs. Mr. Cooper has participated in numerous management and banking courses both

locally and abroad.

Mr. Cooper is a Bahamian citizen born on Septe smber 19, 1957. PO. Box S5-5541, Nassau,

Bahamas.

lan Marcel Wilkinson — Assistant Vice

President, Information Systems

Mr. lan Wilkinson has spent 20 years in information systems technology in New York and
Nassau, betore joining Commonwealth Bank in 1986. In 1999, Mr. Wilkinson was appointed
Assistant Vice President with overall responsibility for data and information svstems. Mr,
Wilkinson holds a B.Sc. in Computer Science from New York University where he is

sursuing his Master's degree in Computer S ind Information Svstems

Mr. Wilkinson is a Bal an citizen borr Sept r 7, 1939. PO. Box S5-6263, Nassau




COMMONWEALTH BANK

SENIOR MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDINGS

| The following table details the interest of Senior Management (inclusive of Executive Directors) in Commonwealth Bank Limited through
| direct, indirect and related party holdings:

Name No. of Shares Pre - Offer Post-Offer
Ownership % Ownership %
Trevor Bryan Thompson 168,317 0.60% 0.54%
William Bateman Sands, Jr. 168,305 0.60% 0.54%
lan Andrew Jennings 88,930 0.32% 0.29%
Timothy Baswell Donaldson ;872 0.26% 0.23%
John Rupert Roberts 31,081 0.11% 0.10%
Shirley Georgann Cartwright 27,394 0.10% 0.09%
Tan Marcel Wilkinson 15,245 0.05% 0.05%
Mavis Ann Burrows 10,532 0.04% 0.04%
Charlene Rozetta Paul 4,937 0.02% 0.02%
Anthea Bernadette Delaney 610 0.00% 0.00%
Silbert Anthony Cooper 253 0.00% 0.00%
Carole Simone Strachan - 0.00% 0.00%
Totals for Senior Management 587,476 2.10% 1.90%
Total Common Shares Issued 28,153,332 100.00% 100.00%
Total Common Shares Outstanding 28,153,332 31,153,332

The aggregate remuneration, inclusive of performance related compensation, of the Management Team of the Bank for the year 1999
and 1998 totaled §1,882,571 and §1,921,628 respectively.
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NonN-ExecuTtivE DIRECTORS

Rupert Winer Roberts, Jr. - Director

A leading businessman, Mr. Rupert Roberts, |r. is President of Super Value Food Stores and
has extensive holdings in commercial real estate and financial ventures throughout The
Bahamas. Those interests include South Bimini International Ltd., Bahamas Paper
Converting, Discount Mart Limited, Chekard Limited and Global Bahamas Limited. As
founder of Super Value, Mr. Roberts created the country’s Ial‘gvst all-Bahamian food store
chain. A former chairman of Commonwealth Bank, Mr. Roberts has served on the Board of

Directors since 1984.

Mr. Roberts is a Bahamian citizen born on May 28, 1937. PO. Box N-3039,

Nassau, Bahamas

R(vnr_: _](‘Elll Bl‘()\r\'l'l =i TI‘(_"JSUI'(,‘I‘ and [)il‘('(“l’()l'

Mr. Reno Brown is Director/ Treasurer of Commonwealth Bank and Director/Secretary of
Pepsi-Cola (Bahamas) Bottling Co. Ltd. Formerly Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ot
R())'al Bank of Scotland International in Nassau, Mr. Brown has twice held directorships with
the Bahamas Development Bank. He has also been a director of the Bahamas Mortgage
Corporation and the Broadcasting Corporation of The Bahamas. Mr. Brown has been on the

Board of Directors of Commonwealth Bank since 1984

Mr. Brown is a Bahamian citizen born March 26, 1932, P.O. Box GT-2524, Nassau, Bahamas

Theodore Brent Symonette - Director

Mr. Brent Symonette has diverse huldings in real estate, financial and commercial interests
l]lruughout The Bahamas. He has served as Director/Officer on several boards, including
Cost-Rite Limited, Eleuthera Adventures Limited and Blue Hill Road Shopping Centre
Limited (Town Centre Mall). Mr. Symonette has been a director of Commonwealth Bank for

a total of eight vears and has served as Secretary.

Mr. Symonette is a Bahamian citizen born on December 2, 1954, P.O. Box N-3709,

Nassau, Bahamas
Franklyn Augustus Butler, O.B.E. - Director

Mr Butler is President and CEO of Milo Butler & Sons Co. Ltd. A director of several
companies, Mr. Butler has interests in financial, real estate and commercial businesses
throughout The Bahamas. Mr. Butler previously served as a Director of the Bahamas
Electricity Corporation and is currently Deputy Chairman of The Bahamas r\griculmrn|
and Industrial Corporation. He has been on the Board of Directors of Commonwealth
Bank since 1984,

My Butler is a Bahamian citizen born on May 24, 1938, P.O. Box N-712, Nassau, Bahamas

Roland Craig Symonette - Director

Mr. Svmonette has diverse holdings in real estate, financial and commercial ventures
throughout The Bahamas. He is Chairman of Abaco Markets 1 td. Mr. Symonette serves on

the board of directors of several Bahamian companies including Bahamas Fast Ferries. He is

President of Freeport Feeder Ltd. and Inter-Island Shipping Co. He has served on the Board
of Directors of Comr vealth Bank a total of 15 vears
Mr. Svm i aha X T n b oust 31.1951. PO. Box N-3709,
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NonN-ExeEcuTtiveE DIRECTORS

Vincent Yelverton D’Aguilar — Director

Mr. Vincent D’Aouilar has diverse financial, real estate and commercial interests throughout The
Bahamas. He has been a director of the Bahamas Hotel Association, a trustee of The Bahamas Hotel and
Allied Industries Pension Fund, a director of .S, Johnson, Global Life Insurance (Bahamas) Limited
and Founding Chairman of the Insurance Company of The Bahamas Limited. He has served as Deputy

Chairman of the Bahamas Electricity Corporation and President of The Bahamas Chamber of

Commerce. Mr. D' Aguilar has been on the Board of Directors of Commonwealth Bank since 1987.

Mr. D’ Aguilar is a Bahamian citizen born on December 25, 1932, P.O. Box N-213, Nassau, Bahamas

Vaughan William Theodore Higgs Director

Mr. Vaughan Higgs joined the family business, Nassau Paper Company Ltd., in 1967 and is now
Vice President and General Manager, Mr. Higgs is a director of several Bahamian companies inc luding
New Providence Traders Ltd., Y-II Shipping Co. Ltd., Flagship Business Forms Ltd., Parliament
Properties Ltd., and Galleria Cinemas Ltd. He has been on the Board of Directors of Commonwealth

Bank since 1994,

Mr. Higgs is a Bahamian citizen born on December 5, 1949. P.O. Box N-4139, Nassau, Bahamas

George Clifford Culmer — Director

Mr. Clifford Culmer, FCA, founder and partner in the chartered accounting firm of BDO Mann Judd,
was the first Bahamian member of the Institute of Chartered Accounts in England and Wales. A
lhunding member of The Bahamas Institute of Chartered Accountants, Mr. Culmer is a member of the
council of BDO International and a director of the Bahamas Financial Services Board. He has been on

the Board of Directors of Commonwealth Bank since 1998.

Mr. Culmer is a Bahamian citizen born on May 10, 1935, P.O. Box N-10144, Nassau, Bahamas

Michael Lancelot Barnett — Director

Mr. Michael Barnett has been a partner with Graham Thompson & Co., Attorneys-at- law, since 1983.
Mr. Barnett has served as Registrar of Examination, President of the Bahamas Bar Association,
Chairman of the Bar Council and as an Acting Justice of the Supreme Court of The Bahamas. He has
held directorships in various offshore banks and is a member of the Financial Services Advisory

Committee. Mr. Barnett was elected to the Board of Directors of Commonwealth Bank in 1999,

Mr. Barnett is a Bahamian citizen born on August 21, 1954, PO, Box N-272, Nassau, Bahamas

Sen. Dr. Marcus Carl Bethel - Director

Dr. Marcus Bethel is Consultant Internist at the Lucayan Medical Centre, Freeport where he was
Medical Director/ Administrator from 1978-1997. Dr. Bethel, who holds a B.Sc. and an M.D., was
presented with the Distinguished Physicians Award by the Medical Association of The Bahamas in 1991,
He is currently Opposition Leader in the Senate of The Bahamas. Dr, Bethel has been a director of

Commonwealth Bank for a total of four vears.

Dr, Bethel is a Bahamian citizen born on jul_\ 4.1947. P.O. Box F-40827, Nassau, Bahamas ‘
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NoN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS

The following table details the interest of Non-Executive Directors in common shares of Commonwealth Bank

Limited thrnuﬂh direct, indirect and related party holdings:

Name No. of Shares Pre - Offer Post-Otter
Pre-Offer Ownership %o Ownership %o

Rupert Winer Roberts, Jr. 3,875,860 13.77% 12.44%
Franklyn Augustus Butler 1,218,338 4.33% 3.91%
\"aughan William T. Higgs 918,090 3.26% 2.95%
Theodore Brent Symonette 729,101 2.59% 2.34%
Roland Craig Symonette 717,131 2.55% 2.30%
Reno Jean Brown 517,308 1.84% 1.66%
Vincent Yelverton D‘:—\guilar 500,000 1.78% 1.60%
Sen. Dr. Marcus Carl Bethel 58,456 0.21% 0.19%
George Clifford Culmer 52,500 0.19% 0.17%
Michael Lancelot Barnett - 0.00% 0.00%
Totals for Non-Executive Directors 8,586,784 30.52% 27.56%
Total Common Shares Issued 28.153,332 100.00% 100.00%
Total Common Shares Outstanding 28,153,332 31,153,332

Non-Executive Directors are paid 87, 500 per annum directors’ fees. In addition Direcrors are reimbursed for sitting on sub-committees

of the Board. Total payments made to Directors in 1999 and 1998 were §1 30,499 and §151,750 respectively.

OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF SuBSIDIARIES

C. B. Holdings Ltd.

Laurentide Insurance and Mortgage Company Limited

Timothy Baswell Donaldson — Executive Chairman
See Management Section

William Bateman Sands, Jr. — President, C.E.O. and Director
See Management Section

Reno Jean Brown -Treasurer and Director

See Directors Section

lan Andrew Jennings — Senior Vice President

& Chief Financial Officer

See Management Section

Trevor Bryvan Thompson — Senior Vice President

& Corporate Secretary

See Management Section

. B. Securit Ltd.

Timothy Baswell Donaldson — Chairman

See Management Section

William Bateman Sands, Jr. — President and Director
See Management Section

lan Andrew Jennings —Treasurer and Director

See Management Section

Trevor Br\ an Thompﬂon Secretary and Director
ement »ecton

e Wanay?

Timothy Baswell Donaldson — Chairman
See Management Section
William Bateman Sands, Jr. — President and Director
See Management Section
lan Andrew Jennings — Vice President and Director
See Management Section
Reno Jean Brown -Treasurer and Director
See Directors Section
Trevor Bryan Thompson — Secretary and Director

See Management Section
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FinNANcIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
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The following financial ratios are derived from the financial statements and projections on pages 37 to 56 in this prospectus and should be |

read in conjunction therewith, The dividend yield is calculated using the actual and projected dividend pay-out.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER (Expressed in BS unless otherwise specified)

Income Statement Data:
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan Losses
Net Interest Income
after Provision
for Loan Losses
Non-interest Income
Non-interest Expenses
Net Income
Net Income available to

Common Sharcholders

Per Share Data:
Earnings Per Share
Book Value

Cash Dividends
Seript Dividends

Weighted Average Common
Shares Outstanding ( 000')

Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets

Securities

Loans

Net Write-olfs

Total Deposits

Total Sharcholders’ Equity

Projected

2001

70,907,000
(25,597,000)
45,310,000

2,950,000

42,360,000
12,200,000

(35,048,000)
19,512,000

14,058,000

0.45
1.60
0.32

31,292

608,067,000
54,000,000
509,359,000
1,450,000
467,195,000

111,241,000

2000

64,055,000
(23,639.000)

1999

56,782,609

(23,796,128)

1998

51,776,568

(24,761,582)

1997

41,724,241

(19,894.059)

1996

36,288,837

(17.698.742)

199¢

31,7415

(12,787.¢

40,416,000 32,986,481 27,014,986 21,830,182 18,590,095 18.954.]
(2,661,000) (2,545,292) (3.154.775) (55,162) (2,703,746) (1,974.1
37,755,000 30,441,189 23,860,211 21775020 15,886,349 16,980,1
11,550,000 9,983,860 8,812,888 8,862,207 6,820,641 6,375,(
(30,928.000) (24.741.176) (21,276,291) (20,430,524) (16,684,681) (15,5164
18,377,000 15,683,873 11,396,808 10,206,703 6,022 309 7.8384
12,923,000 12,733,063 10,871,232 S0, 712 5,526,318 7.3893
0.43 0.41 0.35 0.32 0.18 i
1.44 0.85 1:22 1. 0.98 {
0.30 0.28 0:25 0.18 0.16 i

0 0 0 0.06 0.04
30,016 30,840 30,985 30,633 30,364 30
557,181,000 503,723,037 433,883,959 375,112,844 300,050,666 268,773]
50,000,000 44,217,276 42,123,555 21,865,149 19,812,278 17,410
463,495,000 416,287,295 355,224,065 310,938,567 247,068,996 220,554
1,287,544 1,106,768 1,288,869 1,284 877 1123332 853
416,353,000 379,556,899 312,926,894 253,207,723 184,039,037 165,561
106,005,000 84,822,835 43,980,678 40,382,041 35,958,317 34,725,
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED STATISTICAL,

FiNANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

FORTHEYEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Projected

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
Performance Ratios:
Price/Earnings 13.33 13.95 14.63 17.14 18.75 3333 24.0
Price to Book Value 3.75 4.17 7.06 4.92 5.36 6.12 6.32
Dividend Yield 5.33% 5.00% 4.67% 4.17% 3.00% 2.67% 2.67%
Return on Average Assets 2.39% 2.41% 2.72% 2.69% 2.88% 1.94% 3.03%
Return on Average Sharcholders’ Equity 29.57% B 590, 33.30% 29.00% 29.00% 18.00% 24.05%
Common Dividend Pay-out Ratio 71.30% 70.73% 65.90% 71.54% 74.64% 110.12% 65.10%
Efficiency Ratio 60.94% 59.51% 57.58% 59.38% 66.57% 65.66% 61.26%
Asset Quality Ratios:
Non Performing Asscts to Loans 1.75% 1.70% 1.65% 2.44% 1.37% 2.54% 2.28%
Nom Performing Assets to Total Assets 1.47% 1.41% 1.37% 1.99% 1.14% 2.09% 1.87%
Net Write-offs to Average Loans 0.30% 0.29% 0.29% 0.39% 0.46% 0.48% 0.42%
Prosision tor Loan Losses to Total Loans 2.22% 2.11% 2.07% 1.97% 1.65% 2.57% 2.16%
Provision for Loan Losses to
Non Performing Loans 126.76% 124.36% 122.43% 80.77% 119.86% 101.24% 98.97%
Ligquidity Ratio:
Average Cash and Securities to Average Total Assets 14.33% 14.36% 14.84% 14.37% 13.86% 14.65% 13.47%

Capital Ratio:
Swerage Sharcholders’ Equity to Average Total Assets 18.43% 1775% 13.74% 10.43% 11.31% 12.43% 12.92%
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CoOMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE

SHEET

AS OF DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

ASSETS

Cash and deposits with banks

Balances with Central Bank

Government Stock, Investments and Treasury Bills
| oans receivable

Premises and equipment

Other assets

TOTAL

l{,(}(]‘ l(}L’t"‘ | (.}Lj_',"

1996 and 1995

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
$ 12,731,516 s 8,846,674 s 13,705,226 $ 11,179,412 s 10,340,551
16,503,921 14,742,208 14,995,711 12,027,440 12,583,532
44.217,276 42,123,555 21,865,149 19,812,298 17,410,956
407,862,268 348,237,562 305,817,970 240,718,684 215,784,744
21,214,418 19,032,693 17,824,404 15,224,199 11,825,699
1,193,638 901,267 904,384 1.088,653 827,705
§503,723.037 $433,883,959 §375.112,844 $300,050,666 $268.773.187

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Liabilities:

Deposits

Life assurance fund

Loans and martgages payable

Other liabilities

Dividends payable

Sharcholders’ loans

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital

Share premium

[V.)t‘le’l'l'C(] L‘()11'Il)(‘nHEITi()I'l reserve

General reserve

Retained carnings

Total sharcholders’ equity

TOTAL

Copies of the above Audited Financial St

$379,556,899
5,764,007

7
418.900,2

§312,926,894
4,941,696

5,166,277
26,648
323,061,515
66,841,766
389,903,281

207, 7 S0

9195
265,715,167
69,015,636
334,730,803

$184,039,037
1,285 502
3,618,649
5,132,078
37,492
196,062,958
68,029,391

Ve

264,092,349

ol L

$165,561,357
3,086,492
4,127,176
4,741,810

— 23.186
177,540,021
56,507,533

234,047,554

S I P LR

62,679,200 7,874,821 7,888,816 7,884,405 7,815,239
9,657,005 9538 287 7,981,560 6,658,962

— (400,000) (800,000) (1,200,000)
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

22,142,935 16,448,852 13,354,938 10,892,352 11,451,432
84,822,835 43,980,678 40,382,041 35.958.317 34,725,633

$503,723,037

$433,883,959

$375.112.844

$300,050,666

§268,773,187

atements are available for inspection (see page 62).



YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

INCOME:

Interest income

Interest L‘KPL‘ ns¢

Net interest income

Loan loss provision

Lite assurance, net

Fees and other income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
General and administrative
l)v|‘)1‘t'\'i[!l"l[m and amortization
Directors’ and officers’ fees
(Recovery) provision for loss from robbery

Net (recovery) I)I‘()\'i\'i()]] for ('hu(luc loss

NET INCOME

Preference share dividends

NET INCOME AVAILABLETO COMMON
SHAREHOLDERS

ERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES

Thousands)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

¢

COMMONWEALTH BANK

CoOMMONWEALTH BANK LiIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
§56,782,609 §51,776,568 541,724,241 $36,288,837 531,741,914
(23,.796,128) (24.761,582) (19,894.059) (17,698.742) (12,787,640)

32,986,481 27,014,986 21,830,182 18,590,095 18,954,274
(2,545.292) (3.154.775) (55,162) (2.703.746) (1,974.107)
30,441,189 23,860,211 21,775,020 15,886,349 16,980,167
2,084,007 2,067,613 1,703,852 1,796,250 1,583,188

7.899.853 6,745,275 7,158,355 5,024,391 4 791,892

40,425,049 32.673.099 30,637,227 22,706,990 23,355,247
22,589,786 19,487,670 17,566,141 15,180,794 14,212,737
2,349,140 1922371 1,395,048 1,288,484 1,094,872

234,250 234,250 199:335 215,403 209,225

_ (950,000) 1,270,000

(432.,000) 582,000 = -~

24 741,176 21,276,291 20,430,524 16,684,681 15,516,834

15,683,873 11,396,808 10,206,703 6,022,309 7,838,413
(2,950.810) (525.576) (495,991) (495,991) (449.099)
§12,733.063 $10,871,232 $9.710,712 $5,526,318 $7,389,314
30,840 30,985 30,633 30,364 30,099

S 0.41 S 0.35 s 0.32 M 0.18 S 0.25

Copies of the above Audited Financial Statements are available for inspection (see page 62).
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CoOMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS EQuITYy

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

PREFERENCE SHARES
Balance at beginning of vear
Issued/ (redeemed)

Balance at end of vear

COMMON SHARES
Balance at beginning of vear
Issued

Purchased for reissue

Balance at end of vear

SHARE PREMIUM
Balance at I)cginning of year

Issuance of common shares

Issuance of shares — Employee Stock Option Plan
Conversion of Sharecholders’ loans

Common shares purchased for reissue

Balance at end of vear

GENERAL RESERVE
Balance at beginning of year
Transter to retained earnings

Balance at end of year

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of year
Net income

Common share dividends
Preference share dividends

Transfer from general reserve

Common shares purchased for reissue

Balance at end of year

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AT END OFYEAR

1999

$ 6,007,600

1998

S 6,046,100

1997

§ 6,057,100

1996

s 6,008,100

1995

s 5,000,000

54,983,100 (38.500) (11.000) 49,000 1,008,100
60,990,700 6,007,600 6,046,100 6,057,100 6,008,100
1,867,221 1,842,716 1,827,305 1,807,139 1,802,683
1,979 24,505 21,844 20,166 4,456
(180,000) - (6.433) =
1,689,200 1,867,221 1,842.716 1.827,305 1,807,139
9,657,005 9,538,287 7,981,560 6,658,962 6,396,680
139,896 141,218 1,940,539 1,322,598 262,282

= (22,500) = —

(774,766) - . =
(9,022.135) — (383.812) . =
. 9,657,005 9,538,287 7,981,560 6,658,962
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
(10,000,000} . - = _
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

(400,000} (800,000)  (1,200,000)

16,448,852 13,354,938 10,892,352 11,451,432 8,872,846
15,683,873 11,396,808 10,206,703 6,022,309 7,838,413
(8,391,115) (7,777,318) (7,248,126) (6,085,398) (4,810,728)
(2,950,810) (525,576) (495,991) (495,991) (449,099)
10,000,000 .
(8,647 865) - =
22,142 935 16,448,852 13,354,938 10,892,352 11,451,432

$84,822 835

$43,980,678

540,382,041

$35,958 317

§34.725,633

Copies of the above Audited Financial Statements are available for inspection (see page 62).
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CoOMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAsH Frows

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999, 1998, 1997, 1996 and 1995

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Interest receipts $54,920,934 $49,791,613 $38,752,616 534,082,626 $29,989,976
Interest pavments (23,796,128) (24,761,582) (19,115,153)  (16,933,989)  (11,553,508)
Life assurance premiums received 4,132,697 3,566,210 4,185,826 2,790,290 2,722,268
Life assurance claims and expenses paid (1,226,379) (1,180,583) (1,082,216) (844,830) (868,935)
Fees and commissions received 7,899,853 6,733,496 7,134,717 5,014,460 4,801,825
Recoveries 600,205 998,675 125,898 128,675 110,078
C]wque Loss (50,000) (582,000)
Loss from robbery — — (1,270,000) — —
Cash payments to employees and suppliers (21,403,179) (21,015,458) (17,596,693)  (15,158,714)  (14.645.,607)
21,078,003 13,550,371 11,134,995 9,078,518 10,556,097

Increase in loans receivable (61,063,230) (44,285,498) (63,869,571)  (27,637,686)  (33,878,907)
Increase in d('posits 66,630,005 59,699,171 69,188,686 18,477,680 35,262,938
(Decrease) increase in shareholders’ loans (41,513,817) (2,173,870) 986,245 11,521,858 9,844 957

Net cash (used in) from operating activities  (14,869,039) 26,790,174 17,440,355 11,440,370 21,785,085
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Government Stock,

[nvestments and Treasury Bills (95,717,279) (93,784,060) (69,927,693) (65,974,156) (8,124,484)
Interest receipts and repayment of
Government Stock and Treasury Bills 95,485,233 75,468,375 69,482 896 65,226,168 2,469,309

Purchases of premises and equipment (4,530,865) (3,153,839) (4,060,587) (4,776,120) (4,556,558)
Proceeds from sale of equipment and equity investment 22172 65,334 50,353 15,950

Net cash used in investing activities (4,762,911) (21,397,352) (4,440,050) (5,473,755) (10,195,783)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends I)aid (11,341,704) (8,285,439) (6,010,017) (5,338,114) (6,438,430)
Repavment of loans and mortgages pa_\'ahlc‘ (2,323,709 (1,294,940) (508,527)
Proceeds from issue of common shares 141,875 142,771 199,981 113,795 266,738
Proceeds from issue of preference shares 54,343,334 200,000 1,168,100
Purchase of common shares for re-issue (17,850,000) (390,244)
Redemption of preference shares (15.000) (38,500) (11,000) (151,000) (160,000)

Net cash from (used in) financing activities 25,278,505 (10,504,.877) (7.506,220) (5.683.846) (5,163.592)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,646,555 (5,112,055) 5,494,085 282,769 6,425,710
CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OFYEAR 23,588,882 28,700,937 23,206,852 22,924 083 16,498,373
CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OFYEAR §29,235 437 §23,588,882 $28,700,937 §23.206,852 $22,924.083

Copies of the above Audited Financial Statements are available for inspection (sec page 62).
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MANAGEMENT DiscussioN AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

ConDITION AND REsurts OF OPERATIONS

Mnnagcmcnl’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations analvses the major elements of the Bank’s
balance sheet and statement of income. This section should be read in conjunction with the Bank’s Financial Statements and

accompanying notes and other detailed information appearing elsewhere in the Prospectus,

1999 PERFORMANCE:

AN OVERVIEW

* Third consecutive year of record profits

* Surpassed $500 million in total assets

* Earnings per share 41 cents - an 18% increase on 1998

* Return on common shareholders’ equity of 33.3% up 14.75% over 1998
* Common share dividends up 12%

* Net income after preference dividends increased 17.1%

* Gross revenues increased 20%

* Non performing loans fell to 1.65% of loans

* Efficiency ratio of 57.5%, improved from 59.4% in 1998

* $3/4 million added to general provision

* Total capital exceeds $84 million

* $39.4 million subordinated debt converted to preference shares

* 3 million common shares purchased for re-issue in the year 2000

* Y2K, Hurricane Floyd and communication breakdown between Nassau and Grand Bahama taken in stride

* SunCard accepted at Bahamas Customs

R D S e S R A A S R s e

Overview

For the 12 months ended December 31, 1999, the Bank carned net income of $15.68 million, an increase of $4.29 million or 37.6% over the same perio
in 1998. Earnings per share increased to $0.41 for the vear from $0.35 for the same pcrind in 1998. This carnings grm\th was due to the guncml li(lui(]il_\' i
the system that reduced the cost of funds, as well as a change in the capital structure that converted subordinated debt into Preference Shares. The impact «
this change is discussed below. The return on average equity for 1999 was 33.3% compared to 29% for 1998. Return on average assets was 2.72% in 199
up from 2.69% in 1998. The Bank declared and ]mic] common share dividends of 28 cents per share in 1999 and 25 cents in 1998, pav-out ratios ol 66% an

71.5% respectively of net income available to common sharcholders.

Total assets increased to $503.7 million from $433.8 million, an increase of 16%. Deposits increased 21.3%, Shareholders” equity 93%. Loans increased 17%

cash and liquid assets 11.8% and subordinated debt (Sharcholder loans pavable) fell 6290,

On November 19, 1999 the Protection of [)p])(),\.‘i[|11'\ Act 1999 became law. As a registered member under this scheme, (]L'P()Sit accounts at the Bank up t

B$50,000 are insured l)}' the Deposit Insurance Corporation.
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Capital Transactions

During the year the Bank issued $55 million Preference Shares. In March, 1999, $15 million of these shares were issued for cash.
The remaining shares were issued between July 1 and October 1, 1999 a5 part of a conversion program of subordinated debt, This program
was approved by the Board of Dircctors and The Central Bank of The Bahamas and details of the transaction are included in Note 8 to the

Financial Statements.

On November 26, 1999, the Bank redeemed from three of its major sharcholders 3 million ordinary shares for $17.85 million. Details of this

transaction are outlined on page 11, “Price History and Dividend Policy”, and in Note 9 to the Financial Statements,

Prior to this transaction total equity exceeded $100 million. On successiul completion of this public offering, total equity will once again

exceed $100 million.
Results of Operations

Net Interest Income
Net interest income represents the amount by which interest income on int(-rust-em‘ning assets exceeds interest expense incurred on interest
bearing deposits and liabilities. Net interest income is the principal source of the Bank’s earnings. Interest rate fluctuations, as well as changes

in the amount and type of earning assets and liabilities combine to affect net interest imcome,

Netinterest income for the year ended December 31, 1999 was $33 million, an increase ol $6 million or 22.2% from $27 million for the vear
ended December 31, 1998, The increase in net interest income resulted from increases in the Bank’s loan and securities portlolios. This more
than compensated for the fall in interest rates as a result of the reduction in Bahamian prime rate on July 1, 1999, The high liquidity that

prevailed throughout the year contributed significantly to the reduction in interest expense, despite the 21.3% increase in deposits.

The conversion of subordinated debt to Preference Shares through the vear also resulted in a reclassification of interest expense into Preference
Share Dividends, In line with International Accounting Standards, this was classificd as a dividend after calculation of net profit. Approximately

s1.5 million interest expense was re-classified on this basis.

Provisions for Loan Losses
The provision for loan losses was §2.55 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and $3.15 million for the same period in

1998 a decrease of $0.6 million or 19%.

Non-interest Income
Non-interest income for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 was $10.0 million, an increase of $1.2 million or 13.6% from $8.8

million in the same period in 1998,

Non-interest E xpenses

In the twelve-month period ended December 31, 1999 non-interest expenses increased $3.5 million or 16.3% over 1998. However, for the
twelve months ended December 31, 1999, the efficiency ratio, calculated by dividing total non-interest expenses (excluding securities gains
and losses) Iw}' net interest income p]m non-interest income, decrcased from 59% in 1998 to 57.6%. This decrease was primaril}' due to
increased revenues.,

General and administrative expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 was $22.6 million, an increase of $3.1 million or 15.9%
trom $19.5 million in the same period of 1998, The increase was due to additional personnel costs required to accommodate the Bank’s growth,

The average number of emplovees increased during the vear to 379 from 352 for 1998, a 7.7% increase, Staff was 404 at December 31, 1999,

Depreciation and amortization expense increased to $2.3 million for 1999, an increase of §400,000 or 22% from $1.9 million for the same

period in 1998, The increase was primarily depreciation of the capital investment related to Year 2000 upgrades.

f Inflation
The effects of inflation on the local economy and on the Bank’s operating results have been relatively modest for the past several years, Since

substantiallv all of the Bank’s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature, such as cash, securities, loans and deposits, their values are less
sensitive to the effects of inflation than to changing interest rates which do not necessarily change in accordance with inflation rates. The Bank

ies to control the impact of interest rate fluctuations by managing the relationship between its interest rate sensitive assets and lLiabilitics. See

inancial Condition — Interest Rate Sensitivity and Liquidity” below.
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Financial Condition

Loan Portfolio

Consumer loans made by the Bank include automobile loans, home improvement loans, personal loans (collateralized and uncollateralized) and deposit ac
collateralized loans. The terms of these loans typically range from 12 to 84 months and vary based upon the nature of collateral and size of loan. Consumer
t_\‘pimll_\' range from $5,000 to $25,000 with the lm‘gwt consumer loan lwing $50,000.

Mortgage loans made by the bank are generally first demand legal mortgages primarily on residential real estate. The Bank finances the purchase of e
residences as well as new construction with terms up to 25 vears. The Bank currently offers the lowest linancing rate on personal mortgages and is engage
campaign to increase its market share in this segment.

On a more restricted basis, the Bank offers mortgage tinancing for companies to purchase real estate.

Non performing Assets

The Bank has \\'L‘”-‘(I\‘\'L‘l()PL‘ll procedures in place to maintain a high quality loan portfolio. These procedures include eredit quality policies that begir
approval of lending policies and underwriting guidelines by the Board of Directors, an independent loan review conducted by the Bank’s internal auditor
individual |unding limits for officers, Loan Committee approval for largc credit relationships and qua]ily loan documentation procedures. The Bank monit
dclim]unu:_\‘ levels for any negative or adverse trends. There can be no assurance, however, that the Bank's loan pnrtl‘nlin will not become subject to iner

pressures from deteriorating borrower credit due to general economic conditions.
The Bank policy on placing loans on non-accrual status is discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements on page 42.

{Howance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established through charges to earnings in the form of a provision for loan losses. Based on an evaluation of thi
S g 8 |

portfolio, management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses monthly.

In making its evaluation, management considers the effect of macroeconomic changes in underlving collateral values, the effects of current economic indi
and their probable impact on borrowers. On a microcconomic level management considers the amount of charge-offs for the period, the amount of
performing loans and related collateral security, the evaluation of its loan porttolio by the Bank's independent loan review function and the annual examii
of the Bank's financial statements by its independent auditors. Charge-offs occur when loans are deemed to be uncollectable.

During the vear the Bank increased the general provision on consumer loans based on an analysis of the recent rapid growth in the loan portfolio. This g
reflects the overall vibrant condition of the economy. The Bank believes it is prudent to increase the general reserve, so should any downturn occur
cconomy, the Bank will be adequately provided against any increased losses that result.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 1999 is adequate to cover losses inherent in the portfolio as of such date. There ¢
no assurance, however, that the Bank will not sustain losses in future periods, which could be greater than the size of the allowance at December 31, 1999

Deposits
The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts having a wide range of interest rates and terms. The Bank’s deposits consist of demand, savings and time acc
The Bank relies primarily on ad\'erlir«ing, competitive pricing policies and customer service to attract and retain these deposits. Deposits generally provide .

tunding for the Bank’s lending and investment activities. The interest paid for deposits is managed caretully to control the level of interest expense.

TO]
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reholders’ Loans Payable
hnhtll(krs loans pavable are unsecured long term notes, They are subordinated debt ranking behind deposits, and are priced accordingly. The terms and
onditions of issue were approved by The Central Bank of The Bahamas. Dates of issue ranged from 1989 to 1997 with terms ranging from three to ten years. The
cmaining maturities are as follows:

Year Value
2000 $ 4,535,359
2001 5,441,875
2002 5,806,371
2003 2,495 861
2004 6,748,758
Accrued Interest Pavable 299,725
Total $25,327,949

suring the vear, the Bank undertook a successtul exercise in converting nearly $40 million of sharcholders” loans pavable into permanent preference share
apital, thus giving the Bank an unparalleled depth in capital. The terms of conversion were such that the Bank did not incur any additional expense based on

s remaining life of the shareholders” loans payable and the preference share dividends payable over the same period.

nierest Rate Sensitivity and J,Iqum

sset and liability management is concerned with the timing and magnitude of repricing assets compared to liabilities. It is the objective of the Bank to generate

able growth in net interest income and to attempt to control risks associated with interest rate movements. The Bank’s Finance Committee approves and

stablishes pricing and funding decisions with respect to the Bank's overall asset and liability composition.

iquidity management is critical in protecting the Bank’s capital, maintaining public confidence and ensuring that functional needs can be met, including financial
smmitments and opportunities for profitable business expansion. The Central Bank of The Bahamas requires the Bank to maintain reserve requirements,
1 practice the Bank’s management of liquidity specifies minimum levels of liquid assets that exceed the statutory requirements. The Bank also limits the
aximum net outflow of funds for specified time periods, particularly, peak lending periods. At the end of 1999, cash and liquid assets represented 14.5% of

stal assets.

perational Risk
)Dcratinnal risk is the risk of loss occurring from inadequate internal practices, policies, systems and controls, human crror, fraud or management failure. While
serational risk can never be fully eliminated, the Bank endeavors to minimize it by ensuring that the appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and trained

1 competent people are in place throughout the Bank. Segregation of duties, delegation of authorities, effective training, performance management,

smmunication of risk tolerance, risk monitoring and financial management and reporting are amongst the procedures used to manage operational risk. The
ank also possesses back-up capabilities to support ongoing business operations in the event of adverse conditions. Key operational procedures are approved in

~cordance with delegated authorities and maintained on an ongoing basis to reflect changes in the business environment,
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Deloitte &

Touche

, \ Chartered Accountants & Deloitte & Touche
=8 Management Consultants 2nd Terrace West
P.O. Box N-7120
Nassau, Bahamas
Telephone: (242) 302-4800
Facsimile: (242) 322-3101
Email: deloitte@bahamas.net.bs

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of

Commonwealth Bank Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Com monwealth Bank Limited (the “Bank™)
as of December 31, 1999, and the related consolidated statements of income, sharcholders’ equity and cash
flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the l‘c's])cmsihilit_\' of the Bank’s
management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on

our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Au(liting. Those Standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as c\‘alualing
the overall consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion,
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Bank as of December 31, 1999 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the vear

then ended in accordance with International f”\ccounting Standards.

LLboith ¢ Toudls

Janua]"\ 24,2000




COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

ASSETS

Cash and deposits with banks

Balances with Central Bank

Government Stock, Investments an(lTrvasur}' Bills (Note 3)
Loans receivable (Notes 4 and 14)

Premises and equipment (Note 5)

Other assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS™ EQUITY
Liabilitics:

Deposits (Note 6)

Life assurance fund (Note 7)

Other liabilities

Dividends payable

Sharcholders’ loans payable (Note 8)
Total liabilities
Sharcholders™ Equity:
Share capital (Note 9)
Share premium
General reserve
Retained earnings
Total sharcholders’ equity
TOTAL

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

s

an Sands, Jr.

On behalf of the Board:

»! AT

Tlmotl"y Baswell Donaldson.,
Executive Chairman

1999

§ 12,731,516
16,503,921
44,217,276

407,862,268
21,214,418

1,193,638

§503,723.037

$379,556,899
5,764,007
8,224,478
26,869

393,572,253

25,327.949

p—— T R i A

418,900,202

62,679,900

22,142 935
84,822,835

1,00

1998

S 8,846,674
14,742,208
42,123,555

348,237,562
19,032,693
901,267

E—F SN A

5433,883,959

$312,926,894
4,941,696
5,166,277
= - 26,645
323,061,515

66,841,766
389,903,281
7,874,821
9,657,005
10,000,000

_ 16,448,852
43,980,678
$433,883,959

William Bdl
President dnd hief Executive Officer



COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

1999
INCOME:
Interest income $56,782,609
Interest expense (23,796,128)
Net interest income 32,986,481
Loan loss provision (Note 4) (2,545,292)

30,441,189
Life assurance, net (Note 7) 2,084,007

Fees and other income 7.899.853

40,425,049

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
General and administrative 22,589,786
Depreciation and amortization (Note 5) 2,349,140
Directors’ and officers’ fees 234,250
Net recovery for cheque loss (432,000)
24 741,176
NET INCOME 15,683,873
PREFERENCE SHARE DIVIDENDS (2,950,810

NET INCOME AVAILABLETO COMMON SHAREHOI DERS 512,733,063

AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES (Thousands)

30,840

EARNINGS PER SHARE s 0.41

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

1998

$51,776,568
(24,761,582)
27,014,986
- (3,154, 7759
23,860,211
2,067,613

6,745,275

32,673.099

19,487,670

1,922,371

234,250
(368,000)

21,276,291

11,396,808

30,985

b 0.35



COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

PREFERENCE SHARES (Note 9)
Balance at beginning of year
Issued
Redeemed
Balance at end of vear
COMMON SHARES (Note 9)
Balance at beginning of year
Issued
Purchased for reissue (Note 9)
Balance at end of year
SHARE PREMIUM
Balance at beginning of vear
Issuance of common shares
Conversion of sharcholders’ loans (Note 8)
Common shares purchased for reissue
Balance at end of vear
GENERAL RESERVE
Balance at beginning of vear
Transfer to retained earnings
Balance at end of vear
RETAINED EARNINGS (Note 9)
Balance at beginning of year
Net income
Common share dividends: 28 cents per share (1998: 25 cents)
Preference share dividends
Transfer from general reserve
Common shares purclmscd for reissue (Note 9)
Balance at end of year

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AT END OFYEAR

1999

$ 6,007,600
54,998,100
(15,000)
60,990,700

1,867,221
1,979

(180,000)
1,689,200

9,657,005

139,896
(774,766)
(9,022,135)

10,000,000
(10,000,000)

16,448,852
15,683,873
(8,391,115)
(2,950,810)
10,000,000
(8,647,865)
22,142,935

$84,822.835

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financ ial statements.

1998

$ 6,046,100

(38,500)
6,007,600

1,842,716
24,505

1,867,221

9,538,287
118,718

9,657,005

e e

10,000,000
10,000,000

13,354,938

11,396,808

(7,777,318)
(525,576)

16,448,852

$43,980,678



COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Interest receipts
Interest payments
Life assurance premiums received
Life assurance claims and expenses paid
Fees and commissions received
Recoveries
Cheque loss

Cash payments to employees and suppliers

Increase in loans receivable
Increase in {lcpr)sits
Decrease in sharcholders’ loans

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Government Stock, Investments and Treasury Bills
Interest receipts and repayment of Government Stock and
Treasury Bills
Purchase of premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment and equity investment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid
Repayment of loans and mortgages payable
Proceeds from issue of common shares
Proceeds from issue of preference shares
Common shares purchased for reissue
Redemption of preference shares

Net cash from (used in) financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OFYEAR
CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OFYEAR

1999

$54,920,934
(23,796,128)
4,132,697
(1,226,379)
7,899,853
600,205
(50,000)
(21,403,179)
21,078,003
(61,063,230)
66,630,005
(41,513,817)
(14.869.039)

(95.717.279)

95,485,233
(4,530,865)

(4,762 911)

(11,341,704)

141,875
54,343,334
(17,850,000)

(15,000)

~25,278,505

5,646,555

§29.235,437

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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1998

$49,791,613
(24,761,582)
3,566,210
(1,180,583)
6,733,496
998,675
(582,000)
13,550,371
(44,285,498)
59,699,171
(2,173,870
26,790,174

(93,784,060)

75,468,375
(3,158,839}
72192
(21,397 352)

(8,285,439)
(2,323,709)
142,771

38,500
(10,504,877

(5,112,055)
_28,700,937

$23,588,882



COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

4

INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES

Commonwealth Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is incorporated in The Commonwealth of The Bahamas and is licensed
by the Ministry of Finance to carry out banking business under the provisions of the Banks and Trust Companies

Regulation Act, 1965 as amended.

The principal business of the Bank is that (Ji'acct‘pting savings, fixed and demand (leposits and providing consumer
finance and mortgage i'inan('ing on real estate. As at December 31, 1999, the Bank has three wholly-owned
subsidiaries which are incorporated in The Commonwealth of The Bahamas. The subsidiary companies are
Laurentide Insurance and Mortgage Company Limited (“Laurentide™), which provides credit life insurance in
respect of the Bank’s borrowers, C.B. Securitics Ltd. which was incur])m‘atcd on September 2, 1996, and
operates as an investment company, and C.B. Holding Co. Ltd. which was incorporated on December 8, 1997

and to date has not commenced trading.

The average number of staft employed by the Bank and subsidiary companies during 1999 was 379 (1998: 352).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies are as follows:

a) Principles of consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and
its whollv-owned subsidiaries made up to December 31, 1999, Signiﬁcant intercompany

transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

b) Recognition of income - Income is recognized on an accrual basis, except for mortgages and
§ : g £ag
commercial loans receivable placed on a non-accrual basis (sce Note 2c¢) and fees which are

recognized on a cash basis.
£

c) Loans receivable - Loans receivable are carried at the principal amount outstanding, net of unearned

income [)Ill.\' IlL‘(TLK‘(l interest F(‘L’Ci\'ﬂbl@ ICSR PFO\'iSiOI1 for loan losses.

i) Mortgages - Mortgages are placed on a non-accrual basis, and previously accrued interest
£2ag )
reversed, whenever payment of prim‘ipal and/or interest is ninety days past due or in the

opinion of management there is some doubt as to the ultimate collectibility.

i) ¢ Commercial Loans - Commercial Loans are placed on a non-accrual basis and previously
accrued interest reversed, whenever payment of principal and/or interest is ninety days
past due or in the opinion of management there is some doubt as to the ultimate

collectibility.

iii) Consumer Loans - Consumer Loans are defined as non-performing when principal and/or
interest is contractually in arrears for ninety days and no payment has been received in the

previous sixty days. Accrued interest on these accounts is fully provided.



d)

¢)

f)

k)

n)

Loans receivable (loans) provision and write-off policy - The provision for possible loan losses is increased by charges to
operating expense and decreased by loans written-off, net of recoveries. The provision for loan losses is based on
the Bank's past loan loss experience, customer payment history and other factors which, in management’s

judgmunt, deserve current recognition in estimating loan losses.

The Bank has decided that a general provision for losses on mortgages should amount to a minimum of 1% of

outstanding mortgage balances.

A loan is normally written-off if it is contractually in arrears and no payment has been received in the last 180
days. However, if in the opinion of management, further recovery is possible, the loan may be deferred from

write-off for a period up to a further 120 days.

Life assurance fund - All receipts from the life assurance business of Laurentide are credited to a life assurance fund
as required by The 1969 Insurance Act, under which Laurentide is registered. The fund is reduced in respect ol

expenses of the life assurance business and anv surplus disclosed by actuarial valuation,

Foreign currency translation - Assets and liabilities in other currencies have been translated into Bahamian dollars at
the appropriate rates of cxchange prc-\ailing as of December 31, 1999, Income and expense items have been

translated at actual rates on the date of the transaction.

Premises and equipment - These assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Dcprcciation and amortization are computvd on a straight-line basis and are cha]‘gc(l to non-interest expenses over

the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 40 vears
Leaschold improvements Lease term
Furniture, fittings and equipment 3 - 10 years

Earnings per share - Earnings per share is computed by rJi\'iding the net income, after deducting dividends declared
on preference shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. Earnings

per share does not materially change for the reissue of treasury shares.
Pension costs - Pension costs are determined by actuarial valuation using the single premium method whereby the
cost in any year is the present value of the benefits accruing in that vear based on estimated final salarics. Pension

Costs are chargcd to gem‘ral and administrative expensces,

Deposits and shareholders’ loans payable - Deposits and sharcholders’ loans payable are stated at principal plus accrued

interest.

Government Stock, Investments and Treasury Bills - Investments in Government Stock and Treasury Bills are stated at

cost plus accrued interest. Investments in private equity securities are stated at cost.

Related parties - Related parties include officers, directors, sharcholders with sharcholdings in excess of 5% of

equity and companies that are controlled by these parties.

Cash equivalents - Cash equivalents are represented by cash and deposits with banks plus accrued interest and non-

interest bearing balances with the Central Bank.

Comparatives - Certain figures have been restated to comply with the current vear’s presentation.



3. GOVERNMENT STOCK, INVESTMENTS AND TREASURY BILLS

Government Stock, Investments and Treasury Bills is as follows:

Nominal

Value § 1999 1998
Bahamian Treasury Bills
Maturity January 14, 1999 8,727,300 s 5 8,661,939
Maturity February 18, 1999 6,000,000 = 5,955,000
Maturity March 16, 1999 8,600,000 8,538,000
Maturity May 20, 1999 1,985,000 1,947,295
Maturity January 13, 2000 16,000,000 15,980,800 E
Maturity February 17, 2000 10,000,000 9,987,000 -
Bahamian Government Stock
Maturity 2001, Prime plus 0.750% 762,000 762,000 762,000
Maturity 2006, 8.75% Fixed 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Maturity 2006, Prime plus 0.15626% 172,500 172,500 -
Maturity 2010, Prime plus 0.625% 438,000 438,000 438,000
Maturity 2011, 7.00% Fixed 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Maturity 2011, Prime plus 0.9375% 897,200 897,200 897,200
Maturity 2012, 8.75% Fixed 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
Maturity 2013, 9.00% Fixed 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Maturity 2014, Prime ])lus 0.5% 695,600 695,600 695,600
Maturity 2014, Prime plus 0.46875% 2,352,900 2,352,900 2,352,900
Bridge Authority Bond
Maturity 2029, Prime plus 1.375% 233,400 233,400 -
Deposit Insurance Corporation Bond
Maturity 2004, Prime plus 0.25% 843,000 843,000 -
United States Government Stock
Maturity 2023, 6.250% LSS 400,000 400,000 400,000
Maturity 2024, 7.500% LSS 600,000 582,348 582,348
Investment in Private Equity Securities 500,000 500,000
Accrued Interest Receivable 372,528 __ 393,273

844,217,276 $42,123,555




4. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loans receivable is as follows:

Murtgag(‘s
Commercial loans

Consumer loans, net

Less provision for losses:
At beginning of the vear
Loans written-off
Recoveries
Provision Chargcd to expense

At end of the year

Net loans

Provision for losses is as follows:

1999 GENERAL
Mortgages S
Commercial loans

Consumer loans 2,536,005
Total $§ 3,356,096
1998

Mnrtgagcs §
Commercial loans

Consumer loans 1..512.205
Total § 2,237.928

Non-performing loans are as follows:
Mortgages

Commercial loans

Consumer loans

Percentage of loan portfolio

1999
$ 66,096,730
7,292,991

342,897,574

416,287,295

6,986,503
(1,224,973)
118,205
v 2,545,997

— 8425007
$407,862,268

SPECIFIC
$ 120,000
45,000

4,903,931

8§ 5,068,931

$ 28,000
15,000
— 4,705,575

§ 4,748,575

1999

$ 2,530,312
260,124
4,091,056

$ 6,881,492

1.65%

1998
S 54,204,169
6,402,854

294,617,042
355,224,065

5,120,597
(1,337,544)

48,675

3,154,775

— 6,986,503

$348,237,562

TOTAL

$ 760,435
224,656
7.439.936

$ 8425027

S 563,163
205,560

6,217,780
S 6,986,503

1998
$ 3,384,795
164,257
o 5,101,220

$ 8,650,272

2.44%




5. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment is as follows:

Furniture
Fittings
Leaschold and
Land Buildings Improvements Equipment Total
Cost
December 31, 1998 $3,291,425 § 9,016,133 §2,989,706 $12.353.298 $ 27,650,562
Additions 2,530,514 293,891 1,706,460 4,530,865
Disposals - - = (3,355.366) (3,355,366)
December 31, 1999 3,291,425 11,546,647 3. 283597 10,704,392 28,826,061
Accumulated
Depreciation
and Amortization
December 31, 1998 - 1,065,551 1,484,292 6,068,026 8,617,869
Charge for the year 250,307 276,159 1,822,674 2,349,140
Disposals — — - (3,355,366) (3,355,366)
December 31, 1999 - 1,315,858 1,760,451 4,535,334 7,611,643
Net book value
December 31, 1999 $3,291.425 $10,230,789 $1,523,146 § 6,169,058 $21.214.418
December 31, 1998 $3.291.425 $ 7,950,582 $1,505,414 $ 6,285,272 $ 19,032,693
Depreciation and amortization expense is as follows:
1999 1998
Buildings $ 250,307 $ 227,606
Leasehold improvements 276,159 245,540
Furniture, fittings and equipment 1,822,674 _1,449.225
6. DEPOSITS
Deposits is as follows:
1999 1998
Demand deposits $ 24,958,994 § 19,456,219
Savings accounts 52713130 42,719,235
Certificates of deposit 301,884,775 250,751,440

$379,556,899 $312.926,894




LIFE ASSURANCE FUND

An actuarial valuation of the life assurance fund was conducted as of December 31, 1999, The calculation was based on the greater
of the total of unearned premiums and the actuarial reserve which includes provision for mortality, surrender, expenses and adverse
deviations. As a consequence $2,084,007 (1998: $2,067,613) being premiums distributable otherwise than to policvholders, was

credited to income during the year.
SHAREHOLDERS’ LOANS PAYABLE

Shareholders’ loans payable are unsecured and subordinated with terms ranging from three to ten years. Interest rates on
shareholders’ loans payable vary from 6% to 12% per annum. During the vear, sharcholders’ loans of § 39,443,879 were converted
into preference shares. The cost of conversion was $774,766 and represents the net present value of the difference in interest and

dividend pavments over the remaining life of the sharcholder loans and stamp tax,
SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital is as follows:

1999 1998
Issued and Outstanding Shares:
Preference Shares:
Class Rate % Par Value BS
“A” 9.00 500 $15,000,000 S
“B” 8.50 500 4,985,000 4,985,000
o 8.00 100 1,007,600 1,022,600
Bt 9.00 100 10,000,000 -
SRE 9.00 100 9,998,800 -
“F” 9.00 100 9,999,300 -
"GP 9.00 100 10,000,000 -
60,990,700 6,007,600

Common Shares: 1,689,200 1,867,221

§62.679,900 $7.874,821

All classes of Preference Shares are cumulative, non-voting and redeemable at the discretion of the Board.

Preference Shares:

Authorized:
BS

December 31, Change December 31, Change December 31,

1997 In Year 1998 In Year 1999

Class A $ 7,500,000 $ 7,500,000 $15,000,000 $ - $15,000,000
Class B 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 5,000,000
che 25,000,000 (20,000,000) 5,000,000 5,000,000
Cliis D : 10,000,000 10,000,000 ! 10,000,000
Claiss E % 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Class F — — - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Class G - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000

§37,500,000 $ 7,500,000 §45,000,000 $20,000,000 $65,000,000



10.

Preference Shares:
Issued and nutstanding:

BS

December 31,

December 31,

December 31,

1997 Redemption 1998 [ssue Redemption 1999

Class A S - 5 8 - $15,000,000 $ - $15,000,000
Glass B 4,985,000 - 4,985,000 4,985,000
Elass € 1,061,100 (38,500) 1,022,600 (15,000 1,007,600
Chass 10,000,000 s 10,000,000
Class E 4 r - 9,998,800 9,998,800
Class F . 9,999,300 9,999,300
Class G - - _ 10,000,000 10,000,000

$6,046,100 S _(38,500) $6,007,600 $54.998,100 s (15,000) §60,990,700

Common Shares:

Authorized

December 31, 1998 and December 31, 1999

Issued and outstanding

December 31, 1997

Emplovee Stock Compensation Plan

Cash
December 31, 1998
Cash

Shares purchased for reissue

December 31, 1999

B$0.06 each
Number BS
75,000,000 54,500,000
30,711,929 1,842,716
382,538 22,952

25.878 1,553
31,120,345 1,867,221

32,987 1,979
(3,000,000) (180,000)
28,153,332 1,689,200

On November 26, 1999, the Bank purchdsed 3 million orr!inary shares from its three ]arguﬁt sharcholders discounted at 12.5% from

the mid-market price as quoted by Colina Financial Group on that date. The Central Bank approved the temporary reduction in

capital pending re-issue of the shares in a public offer. As a condition of approval, the sharcholders were required to place the

proceeds of the sale on deposit with the Bank until after the date of the share issue, The total value of the transaction $17,850,000

was allocated to reduce the following accounts:

Common shares
Share premium

Retained carnings

Amount
$ 180,000
900279135
8,647,865
$17,850,000

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

On December 14, 1999, the Board of Directors approved an employee stock option plan for key employees with a grant of two

million shares on May 1, 2000. Options will vest over five years and vested options may be exercised within six years from the

date of grant at the ofter price of the Bank’s public share issue in the year 2000.



11. RELATED PARTIES BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

Unless otherwise noted, related party transactions and balances are on normal hanking terms. Executive Officers receive preferential
rates of interest on loans and mortgages as part of their compensation package.

Related parties balances and transactions are as follows:

1999 1998

Loans receivable § 5,267 777 § 2,696,430
Shareholders’ loans pavable $10,201,181 $29.033,570
Deposits § 24 128,774 $12,554,032
Interest income S 218,641 $ 206,701
Interest expense § 2,708,581 £ 3,575,763
Rental expense $ 154,940 s 133,140
Sharcholders’ loans converted to preference shares $ 18,792,389 $ -
Rental commitments to related party:

Year 2000 $103,140

Year 2001 S 94,546

Commitments under revolving credit lines totaled $2.6 million as at December 31, 1999,

12. BANK PENSION FUND

An actuarial valuation of the Bank’s pension fund was carried out at December 31, 1997, The fund is adequately funded based on
the actuary’s valuation and a subsequent review to December 31, 1998, The Bank currently contributes 9% of employees’ gross
salaries, which is consistent with actuarial advice.

The Bank administers its own pension tund. The pension fund owns 174,436 (1998: 174,436) common shares of the Bank.
These shares have a market value of 51,186,165 (1998: §910,000) which represents 10% (1998: 10%) of the pension fund’s assets.
During the year the pension fund converted its shareholder loans into preference shares. At December 31, 1999 the pension fund
owns §3 million (1998: Nil) preference shares of the Bank.

Pension funds held at the Bank and related interest expense are as follows:

1999 1998
Sharcholders’ loans ])a_\'ahlc S $2,532,049
Deposits 3,864,523 3,756,759
$3.864,523 $6,288 808
Interest expense § 324 448 s 425758

13. MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The maturity dates of assets and liabilities are as follows:

ASSETS 1999 1998
On demand $ 50,324,231 § 50,984,066
3 months or less 29,386,684 26,724,802
Over 3 months through 6 months 4.229 384 4,470,112
Over 6 months through 12 months 12,276,838 8,400,162
Over 12 months through 24 months 37,419,653 28,453,515
Over 24 months through 5 years 215,318,885 195,388,374
Over 5 years 154,767,362 119,462,928
$503:723.037 $433.883,959

LIABILITIES 1999 1998

On demand $ 30,760,579 § 22,651,756
3 months or less 175,762,655 171,823,966
Over 3 months through 6 months 78,670,271 51,522,499
Over 6 months 1]11‘uu-1¥h 12 months 60,194 475 56,294,743
Over 12 months through 24 months 27,2085 24,127,204
Over 24 months through 5 vears 35,491,907 52,170,292
Over 5 vears - 10,811,758 11,312,821

<418 900 2?2 £ 389 9()3 7’81
210, AR aats &

. =



14. CONCENTRATION OF LOANS RECEIVABLE AND LIABILITIES

Concentration of loans receivable and liabilities is as follows:

1999 1998
Number of Number of
S Accounts $ Accounts
Loans receivable:
Under $50,000 $338,049 454 42,323 $294 360,435 44 779
$50,001 - $100,000 32,854,997 474 29,088,999 395
$100,001 - $150,000 15,108,830 123 10,547,228 81
5150,001 - 5300,000 12,606,957 64 9,585,167 46
$300,001 - $500,000 6,776,423 18 4,812,329 10
§500,001 - $1,000,000 1,571,210 2 1,178,592 2
$1,000,001 and over 1:539.131 1 -
Provision (8,425,027) - (6,986,503)
Accrued interest receivable 7,780,293 - 5,651,315 ’
407,862,268 43,005 $348,237.562 45,313
Liabilitics:
Under 850,000 $112,703.599 52,381 $107,526,766 60,249
$50,001 - $100,000 45,502,292 629 42,543,561 589
S100,001 - $150,000 29,185,679 241 31,513,190 259
$150,001 - $300,000 54,554,259 256 51,149,359 245
$300,001 - $500,000 38,278,719 95 40,337,697 101
$500,001 - $1,000,000 48,278,821 69 53,974,949 76
$1,000,001 and over 71,109,879 38 47,229,221 29
Accrued interest payable 5,271,600 ) 5,493,917
Other liabilities 8,224 478 5,166,277
Dividends payable 26,869 26,648
Life assurance fund 5,764,007 - 4,941,696 =
$418,900,202 53,709 $389.903,281 61,548
15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
a) In the ordinary course of business, the Bank had commitments as of December 31, 1999 as follows:
1999 1998
Mortgage commitments $ 8,730,928 § 3,948,720
Revolving credit lines 19,769,363 17,363,859
Standby letters of credit 275296 100,000
Capital expenditures:
Approved but not yet contracted 2 1,097,615
Contracted 1,402,683 2,257,472

$ 30,178,270 § 24,767,666

Revolving Credit Lines - are undrawn lending facilities that have been approved by the Bank to meet the requirements of
customers.  They are revocable at the Bank's discretion. The amount shown represents the maximum amount of

additional credit that the Bank could be obligated to extend. In practice many of these commitments will remain

UI')(II'C[\\'I'[ {lll(i th‘ amount is not in(licati\'c of future CdSh I‘L’quil‘L‘lTlL‘lllS.

Standby letters of credit -

are short term instruments used to facilitate international trade typically on behall of an

importer, subject to specific terms and conditions. They are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to

which they relate,

b) The Bank is obligated under non-cancelable leases on property, all of which are operating leases, expiring no later than
2005, and on maintenance contracts for computer equipment and soltware expiring no later than 2003 on which the

minimum annual rentals are ap])mximatcl\' as follows:

Minimum Rental Commitments

Leases Computer Equipment and Software

Year Bs Bs

2000 709,572 245,882

2001 831,307 248,187

2002 690,391 84,965

2003 647,865 51,000

2004 522,315

2005 109,249

¢) The Bank has an undrawn line of credit with Bank America, Miami for USs$1,000,000 which was established to service
customer transactions. This credit line is secured by United States Government Stock USs 1,000,000 disclosed in Note 3.



INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

Interest rate sensitivity or interest rate risk results primarily from differences in the maturities or repricing dates of assets and
liabilities. Interest rate risk exposures, or “gaps” may produce favourable or unfavourable effects on interest margins depending on
the nature of the gap and the direction of interest rate movement and/or the expected volatility of those interest rates. Interest rate

gaps are carctully monitored and interest sensitive assets and liabilities arc adjusted accordingly with changing market conditions.
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises from the failure of a counterparty to perform according to the terms of the contract. From this perspective, the
Bank's significant exposure to credit risk is primarily concentrated in cash and current accounts, investments and loans, The deposits
and investments are predominantly in Bahamian dollars and have been placed with high quality institutions. The loans are short-term
and are controlled using specilic policies which are dcsignod to maximize the risk/return trade off,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value represents values at which financial instruments could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
g £

parties. Wherever there is no available trading market, fair values are estimated using appropriate valuation methods.

Due to their short-term maturity, the carrying values of the majority of financial assets and liabilitics are assumed to approximate

their fair value,

POST BALANCE SHEET EV

On January 13, 2000, at an Extraordinary General Meeting, the Sharcholders approved a public uﬁl‘ring of 3 million common shares,

from treasury, subject to the approval of the Securities Commission of The Bahamas,




Deloitte &
Touche

, \ Chartered Accountants & Deloitte & Touche
e Management Consultants 2nd Terrace West
P.O. Box N-7120
Nassau, Bahamas
Telephone: (242) 302-4800
Facsimile: (242) 322-3101
Email: deloitte@bahamas.net.bs

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Sharcholders and Directors of

Commonwealth Bank Limited:

We have examined the projected consolidated balance sheets of Commonwealth Bank Limited as of
December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the related statements of income, sharcholders’ equity and cash flows for
the vears then ending in accordance with International Standards on Auditing applicable to the examination
of prospective financial information. Management is responsible for the projection including the assumptions

set out in the notes thereto on which they are based.

Based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention
which causes us to believe that these assumptions do not provide a reasonable basis for the projection.
Further, in our opinion, the projection is properly prepared on the basis of the assumptions and is presented

in accordance with International Accounting Standards.

Actual results are likely to be different from the projection since anticipated events frequently do not occur

as expected and the variation may be material.

L) boitte 9 Towtbe

January 24, 2000



CoMMONW EALTH BANK LiMITED

PROJECTED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 2001

(Expressed in thousands of Bahamian dollars)

SHEET

ASSETS
Cash and deposits with banks
Balances with Central Bank
Government Stock, Investments and Treasury Bills
Loans receivable
Premises and equipment
Other assets
TOTAL

LTABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities:

Deposits

Life assurance fund

Other liabilities

Dividends payable

Shareholders' loans payable
Total liabilities
Sharcholders” Equity:
Share capital
Share premium
Retained carnings
Total sharcholders’ equity

TOTAL

2000
s 12,500
18,370
50,000
453,697
21,614

— 1,000

$§ 557,181

$416,353
6,000
8,000

30
430,383

20,793

451 176

62,860
17,220
25,925
106.005

§ 557,181

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial projection.

On behalf of the Board:

- d. -

M

Tmm[l’f\ Baswell Donaldson,
Executive Chairman

William Bat
President and

X

man Sands, JIr.
hief Executive Officer

2001
$ 12,500
21,542
54,000
498,061
20,964
1.000

A

$ 608,067

$ 467,195
6,250
8,000

30
481,475
_ 15,351

496.826

62,872
18,408
29,961
111,241
s 608,067




COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

PROJECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 2001

(Expressed in thousands of Bahamian dollars)

INCOME:
[nterest income
[nterest expense
Net interest income

Loan loss provision

Life assurance, net

Fees and other income

NON-INTEREST EXPENSES:
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization

Directors and officers’ fees
NET INCOME
Preference Share Dividends
NET INCOME AVAILABLETO COMMON SHAREHOILDERS

AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES (Thousands)
EARNINGS PER SHARE

2000 2001

5 64,055 § 70,907
(23.639) (25.597)
40,416 745,310
(2,661) (2,950)
37755 42,360
2,250 2,400
9,300 9,800
49,305 54,560
28,072 32,118
2,600 2,650
256 280
30,928 35,048
18,377 19,512
(5,454) (5,454)

§ 12.923 $ 14,058
30,016 31,297

5§ 043 $ 0.45

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consalidated financial projection.
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PROJECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 2001

(Expressed in thousands of Bahamian dollars)

2000 2001

PREFERENCE SHARES

Balance at Imginning of year S 60,991 S 60,991

Balance at end of year 60,991 60,991
COMMON SHARES

Balance at beginning of vear 1,689 1,869

Issued 180 12

Balance at end of year 1.869 1,881
SHARE PREMIUM

Balance at lwginning of year = 17,220

Issuance of common shares 17,820 1,188

Cost of issue (600) -

Balance at end of year 15.992¢) 18,408
RETAINED EARNINGS

Balance at beginning of year 22,143 25975

Net income 18:377 19.512

Common dividends (9,141) (10,022)

Preference share dividends (5.454) (5.454)

Balance at end of vear 25995 29,961
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AT END OFYEAR S 106,005 S 111,241

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial projection.

PROJECTED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 2001
(Expressed in thousands of Bahamian dollars)

2000 2001
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Interest receipts 362175 $ 68,827
Interest payments (23,639) (25,597
Life assurance premiums received 4,500 5,300
Life assurance claims and expenses paid (1,250) (1,480)
Fees and commissions received 9,300 9,800
Recoveries 50 50
Cash payments to employees and suppliers (30,613) (33.192)
20,523 23,708
Increase in loans receivable (47,208) (45,864)
Increase in c]vpusils 36,796 50,842
Decrease in sharcholders’ loans (4,535) (5,442)
Net cash from operating activitics 5,576 23244
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Government Stock, Investments and Treasury Bills (79,684) (77,784)
Interest receipts and repayment of Government Stock
and Treasury Bills 75,938 73,988
Purchases of ])I.'t’ﬂlir-('h and cquipment - (3,000) (2,000)
Net cash used in investing activitics (6,746) (5.796)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Dividends paid (14,595) (15,476)
Proceeds from issuance of common shares 17,400 1,200
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 2,805 (14,276)
NET INCREASE IN CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,635 51 )
CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OFYEAR 259.235 30,870
CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OFYEAR s 30,870 S 34,042

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial projection.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL PROJECTION

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 2001
(E.\'prcvsed in thousands of Bahamian dollars)

Ed

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial projections have been prepared by management for inclusion in a prospectus relating to the offer to the public for comm
shares in Commonwealth Bank Limited (“the Bank”). The financial projection may not be appropriate for any other purpose. These assumptio
reflect the Bank's intentions for the years covered and are based on management’s judgement as to the most probable set of expected futu
economic conditions. In view of the uncertainties inherent in predicting future conditions and actions, actual results achieved during t

projected period may vary from the forecasted results and the differences may be material.

The consolidated financial projection include the Bank and its three wholly-owned subsidiaries which are incorporated in the Commonweal

of The Bahamas.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies described in Note 2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 1999 have been follow

in the preparation of these accounts,
KEY ASSUMPTIONS IN THE FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS

a. Regulatory environment - It is assumed that the existing regulatory environment will continue unchanged without introduction of a

legislation that may materially change the business of the company.

b. Socio-Economic environment - It is assumed that economic activity stays at the levels of 1998 and 1999 and that the Bahamian dollar remai

pegged at par to the United States dollar for the period of the projection.

c. Results of public subscription - It is assumed that the issue is fully subscribed and the issue cost is $600,000. It is also assumed that this is t
only increase in common or preference Shares in the years of the projection other than the exercise of 200,000 options in May 2001

outlined on page 60 of the prospectus.

d. Common dividends - Tt is assumed that the common dividends per share will be 30 cents in 2000 and 32 cents in 2001 payable in four equ

installments at the end of each quarter.

e. Loan growth - The projection reflects the strategy of the Bank in servicing the personal customer’s requirements, The Bank has been ve
successful in capturing and maintaining its market share of this customer segment, despite increasingly aggressive competition. T
projected consolidated balance sheet assumes that loans will increase at less than historic rates due to the increasing competition.

f.  Loans receivable (loans) provision and write-off policy - The projection does not anticipate any change in the historic rates of charge off o1

deterioration in non-pertorming loans.
The projection maintains total provision for losses at 2% of outstanding loan balances as a guideline.

g Premises and equipment - The projection does not include any new branch locations. Allowance has been made for the investigation a
implementation of remote banking channels, namely banking machines and point of sale debit cards and the development of electror

capture for the banks credit card portfolio.

h. Deposits and shareholders’ loan payable - The projection assumes that the shareholders’ loans payable are repaid at maturity, and that fundi
is replaced by deposits. The projection reflects the successtul strategy of the Bank in capturing and maintaining its market share of 1
deposit market.

i. Earnings per share - All share options are assumed to be exercised in the period they vest so there is no dilution of carnings per share.

j.  Non-interest expenses - Non-interest expenses is anticipated to increase and result in an increase in the efficiency ratio for 2000 and 2001
a result of the opening of the Wulff Road branch. The benefit from the branch in increased total revenues are anticipated to be obtained

the second half of 2001,

k. Commirments and contingencies - No unusual commitments by nature or size are In'niu'lwl in these statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

At an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 13, 2000, it was resolved:

i) To approve the consolidation. amendment and restatement of the Memorandum and Articles of Association ol
Commonwealth Bank;

i) To approve an offer of Three million (3,000,000) common shares ol the Company to the pulvlh_ and to approve the
Directors taking all such steps as are necessary or proper for effectuating the offer and settling and approving the form

of prospectus for the purpose ol the ofter of the shares to the public for subscription and to reasonably determine the

offer price of the shares;

iii) [o approve and empower the Directors to execute anv and all documentation and or resolutions to effect the
aforementioned and to make all necessary filings and supply A1l necessary information to the Securities Commission to
obtain their approval lor the offer of the shares to the public.

The following information is taken from the amended and
restated Articles of Association of the Bank and all references
to the “Act” mean the Companies Act, 1'992;

I. The Bank in general meeting clects Directors of the Board.

). Pursuant to Article 71 of the Articles of Association, the Bank's members in general meeting dec ide the remuneration of
Directors. :

3. Pursuant to Articles 32 through 34 of the \rticles of Association, the Directors have unlimited powers to borrow such sums
and secure such sums on behalf of the Bank upon such terms and conditions, as thev think fit.

4. Pursuant to Articles 87 through 88 of the Articles of Association, Directors are vested with the following powers:
87. The management of the business of the Company shall be vested in the Directors, who in addition to the powers and

authorities by these presents or otherwise expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers and do all such acts
and things as may be exercised or done by the Company and are not hereby or by the Act expressly direc ted or required to b
exercised or done by the Company in ;l'm-ml meeting; but subject neve rtheless to the provisions ol anv Act, and of thesc
presents and to any regulations from time to time made by the Company in genc ral meeting; pl'n\uiul that no L'-_;_:ul;ulium S0
made shall invalidate any prior act ol the Directors which would have been valid if such regulation had not been made.

88 Without |:n-m<|il e to the general powers conferred by the last preceding « lause and the other powers conferred by thes

Q.

presents, it is hereby expressly declared that the Directors shall have the following powers, that is to sav:-

(1) To pay the costs, charges and expenses I)I'l.'“l'lliﬂﬂ['\ and incidental to the promotion, formation, establishment
registration of the Company.
(2)  To purchase or otherwise acquire for the Company any property (real or personal) rights or privileges which the

Company is authorised to acquire, at such price, and senerally on such terms and conditions, as they think tit.

(3) [o sell, exchange or otherwise for valuable consideration to dispose of all or any of the [arnln-ri\ real or pr!‘wn.ﬂ of the
Company and to sign, seal, execute and deliver convevances, transfers and assignments of any property so sold, exchange d
otherwise disposed of.

(4) At their discretion to pay for any property, rights or priv ileges acquired by, or services rendered to the Company,
wholly or p.u‘imll_\' in cash or in shares, bonds, debentures, or other securities of the Company and any suc h shares mav
issued.

(5) [o secure fulfillment of any contracts, or engagements entered into by the Company by mortgage or charge of all or a

ol the property ol the Company and its unpaid capital for the time being, or in such other manner as they think fit.

bl

(6) To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any lcgnl proc cedings by and against the Company or its ol
or otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company; and also to \:)mpnuml and allow time tor pavment or satisfaction ol
debts due, and of any claims or demands by or against the Company.

(7y  From time to time to provide for the management of affairs of the Company abroad in such manner as thev think fit
and, in p.n'liullm' to appoint any persons o be attornevs or agents of the Company w ith such powers (inc luding power

subdelegate) and upon suc h terms as mav be thought fit.

(8) [0 invest and deal with any of the monevs ol the Company not immc diately 1 (llﬂi'lfl for the purposes ol the Com
L upon sud h sccurities and in such manner as they may think it and from time to time to vary or realize such investments
nesotiations and contracts and rescind and vary all s ontracts and execute and do all such debts,

9) To enter into all s

Company as they n xpedient for or

S L 1Y
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The rights attached to preference shares are as follows;

I,

The holders of Preference Shares are not entitled to vote at general meetings of the Shareholders and are not entitled to

reccive notice of or to attend such meetings, unless the same is called for the purpose of altering the rishts attached to a
25, PHL 2 g

class of Preference Shares.

(A)

(B)

()

(A)

(B)

The holders of *A” Preference Shares, “D” Preference Shares, “E” Preference Shares, “F” Proference Shares and
“G” Preference Shares (hercinafter called A, D, E, F, and G Preference Shares”) arc entitled to receive out
of the monies of the Bank dividends on the amount paid up thereon at the rate of interest to be determined by
the Directors at time of issuance which are paid quarterly;

The holders of “B” Preference Shares are entitled to receive out of the monies of the Bank dividends on the amount
paid up thercon at the rate of cight and one half per centum (8 '/%) per annum which are paid quarterly; and
The holders of the “C” Preference Shares arc entitled to receive out of the monies of the Bank dividends on the
amount paid up thereon for the periods cnding on the 28th of February and the 31st of August cach vear, (such
periods hereinafter called “the dividend periods” and such dates hereinafter called “the dividend
payment dates”). Dividends are calculated on each din idend pavment date for the ensuing dividend period at
a rate to be determined by the Dircectors of the Bank on the date of the issue of such “C” Preference Shares which
is no less than One and a half per centum (1.5%) below nor more than Three per centum (3%) above the
Bahamian Prime Rate determined from time to time by the Central Bank of The Bahamas and prevailing on the
said date of issue of such “C” Preference Shares. All dividends calculated as aforesaid are paid in arrears on each

dividend payment date for the preceding dividend period.

The Bank at the discretion of the Board of Directors may redeem at any time the whole or from time to time
any part of the then issued and (mtﬁtanf!ing A, D, E, F and G Preference Shares, “B” Preference Shares and “C”
Preference Shares on payvment for each such Preference Share to be redeemed of the amount paid up thereon
together with all dividends due thereon up to the date of payment; provided however, that the Bank will have
given to the holders of A, D, E, F and G Preference Shares thirty (30) days’ clear notice in writing of its intention
to redeem such Preference Shares (or part thereof); and further provided that the Bank at the discretion of the
Board of Directors may offer to the holders of such A, D, E, F and G Preference Shares (within the said notice)
the option to convert all or any of such Preference Shares into Common Shares on condition that the holders of
the A, D, E, F and G Preference Shares w ho wish to exercise such option give the Bank written notice of their

intention to do so prior to the last day of the said thirty (30) day period.,
The “C” Preference Shares are redeemable in the manner following:-

(i) The “C” Preference Shares to be redeemed on each occasion are determined b}' a draw ing to be made
at such time and place and in such manner as the Board of Directors may determine, but in the
presence of at least one of the Directors and a representative of the Auditors of the Bank for the time
Iwing;

(ii) Forthwith atter every such {im\\ing the Bank will give to the holders of the “C” Preference Shares
drawn tor n-clvmpli(m notice in writing of the Bank’s intention to redeem the same and dﬂ]xing a time
{(not less than One (1) month ahead) and place for the redemption and surrender of the “C” Preference
Shares to be redeemed; and

(iii) At the time and place sa fixed each such holder are bound to surrender to the Bank his “C” Preference
Shares to be redeemed and the Bank will pay to him the amount pavable in respect ol such

redemption,

Preference Shares shall rank in a w inding up, as regards repavment ol capital, in priority to the Common Shares and pari

vassu with all other Preference Shares, but shall confer no right to partici nation in profits and assets of the Bank other than
I g | I |

outstanding dividends due,
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Secondary Market for Shares

The Bank intends to seck listing on the proposed Bahamas International Securitics Exchange (BISX) once it becomes
operational. In addition, First Bahamas Capital Ltd. and Fidelity Capital Markets Limited have advised the Bank that they
will facilitate secondary market trading in the Bank’s shares by being market makers. Also, they will publish the “bid” and

“asked” prices for the Bank's shares in the daily newspapers,
Pian of Distribution of Common Shares

The Directors wish to achieve the broadest possible distribution of common shares to the greatest number of new
£

sharcholders. With this in mind, the Directors propose to employ a bottom up allocation procedure. Under this approach

subscribers will be allocated shares across the board in increments of 100 shares until all shares have been allocated.

Litigation

There are no current, pending or threatened material legal proceedings or claims to which the Bank or any of its
subsidiarics is a party or of which any of its or their respective property is subject other than routine litigation incidental
to the Bank’s business. Management is of the opinion that all current litigation will not have any material adverse atfect
on the Bank’s financial position.

Offering Cost
L=
Expenses of the offering are estimated to be $600,000 inclusive of advisory, legal, accounting, I)lll)lit' relations (im‘lu(ling

advertising and promotion), escrow fees, prospectus costs and any other fees directly attributable to this offering,
E mp I oymen t f\ greemen ts

The Bank has entered into employment agreements with all members of the executive management team. In addition
to salaries and other benefits accorded to all Bank employees, members of this group participate in the Executive

Management Performance Based Incentive Scheme and Share Option Plan.
Exccutive Management Performance Based Incentive Scheme

Certain officers, management and slal}'par{icilmu' ina ])urfr)]'nmm‘u based incentive scheme. Payments under the scheme
are caleulated at 15% of the net income betore allowance tor payments under the scheme, but after preference share

dividends and a 10% return on the average annual common sharcholder’s equity.

)
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(GENERAL INFORMATION

Share Option Plan

A Share ()Pti(;n Plan has been established for l\\\ mnp]n_\'uw, The prime purpose of the l)IJIl is to encourage ]un:_h'\it} of service of Lm\
employees and to act as an incentive to maximize long-term sharcholder value, The Directors have approved an initial grant of 2 million
common shares (at the nI‘IL-ring price) tor this share option |)ilm‘ ('urrcnll_\'. 55 supervisory, management and executive stafl members are
c|igi|ﬁv for participation.

The number of options granted to each participant annually will be determined based on criteria which includes performance, rank, tenure

and contribution to the Bank’s overall success. The Chairman must approve all individual grants. Other conditions applied to this plan are:

1) All unused options expire 6 years from date of grant.

=)

2) Options may onlv be exercised while in the vm|)|n\ ment of the Bank or subsidiary or affiliated companies unless otherwise
approy ed by the Board.

Period _ % Total

Period ('I‘I-:Iil‘lg .‘\l‘l!‘il 30, 2001 10% 200,000
Period ending April 30, 2002 15% 300,000
Period ending April 30, 2003 20% 400,000
Period vm‘ling April 30, 2004 25% 500,000
Period ending April 30, 2005 _30% 600,000
TOTALI 100% 2,000,000

FANSATAT M EATACE

Employee Relations

The Bank has over 400 full-time employees and considers itsell to be a leader in staff training and development. Management considers staff
relations to be g(m(]. The Bank provides emplovees with a pension plan, group health insurance, loans at ])rrtl-l'vmi.ﬂ rates, incentive
programs and other benefits.As a reward for long service, the Bank grants common shares to valued employees. The total number of
common shares issued to emplovees under this program were:

Year No. of shares
1997 18,479
1998 6,381
1999 3,929

Insarance Coveéerage

o v . . . . . 1 . . -
The Bank reviews insurance coverage annually and is of the opinion that it maintains adequate insurance coverage for its business operations
and associated business risks.

Commissions
No commission is pavable or has been paid to anyone for subscribing or agrecing to subscribe or procuring or agreeing to procure
subseriptions for any shares in the Bank, except to First Bahamas Capital Ltd. (FBC) for agreeing to procure subscriptions for shares as part

ol this offering, Under this agreement, FBC will be compensated based on the number of subscriptions received subject to a maximum lee
& £

ol $100,000. Reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection w ith these services will be reimbursed.

1, eases

The Bank has the following material lcases in effect:

The Town Centre Branch operates in the southern section of the Town Centre Mall, Blue Hill Road, Nassau. The lease expires in 2001 at an
annual rental of $51,800 tor 7,200 square feet. The lease is currently being renegotiated to 2005. The landlord is a company controlled by

T.B. Symonette and R. C. Svmonette, directors of the Bank.

The Lucaya Branch operates in the Seahorse Shopping Plaza in Lucaya, Grand Bahama. The lease expires in 2001, The annual rental is

$103,140 for 5,157 square feet. The landlord is .\lii'_m B. Butler & Sons Investments Limited, a shareholder of the Bank.

The Plaza Branch and Corporate Head Office operate in The Plaza on Mackey Street, Nassau. The lease on the branch premises expires in

S

is 5647

2005 and head office premises in 2004 Annual renta 65 for 24,000 square feet. The Bank also rents 2,550 square feet in the

southwest wing of The Plaza complex at an annual rent of 548,975 expiring in Septe mber 2000,

[he Bank rents additional space tor storage and archiving at non-material amounts



D

COMMONWEALTH BANK

EXPERTS AND ADVvisio:!

Deloitte & Touche, Chartered Accountants, have given and not withdrawn their written consent to the issue of this prospectus with the
inclusion herein of their name and reports on historical and projected financial information in the manner and form in which they are

included.

Graham, Thompson & Co. has been retained as counsel and attorney to the Bank. The firm does not represent the investing sharcholders in
the Bank and no independent counsel has been retained to represent such sharcholders,

Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. has been retained as financial advisor to the Bank. The Company does not represent the investing sharcholders
in the Bank and no independent advisor has been retained to represent such sharcholders. Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. has given and not
withdrawn its consent to the issue of this prospectus with the inclusion herein of its name as financial advisor to the oftering in the form and
context in which it is included,

Certain partners of Graham, Thompson & Co. have a combined ownership of 64,778 common shares in the Bank,

Certain directors and officers of Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. have a combined ownership of 1,319 common shares in the Bank.

RELATED PARTY IRANSACTIONEG:

Related parties include officers, directors, sharcholders with sharcholdings in excess of 5% of equity and companies that are controlled by
these parties,

Sharcholder Loans Pavable:
Sharcholder loans payable are unsecured and subordinated with terms ranging from three to ten years from the original date of issue.

The maturity of Related Party Sharcholders Loans is as follows:-

Year Principal Value
2001 $ 753,592
2002 4,515,704
2004 4,931,885
Total $10,201,181

Aldae w1, 00
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" RELATED PARTY IBANSACTIONS

Loans:

Loans to related parties at December 31, 1999 comprise:-

Classification Balance
Loans
Non-Executive Directors
Unsecured S 347,097
Secured b}' real estate g 217124
Executive Officers
Consumer S 483,528
Murtgagcs $1,076,410
Commercial 5 312,268
Non-qualitying loans s 69,919
Unsecured Credit Card Balances S 68,895
Overdralts
Cash secured 51539131
Secured by shares § 693,258
Mortgage In'i(z%ing facility $ 200,892
Unsecured under $50,000 § 259,258
Commitments under revolving credit lines $2,600,000

Related party transactions and balances are on normal arms length banking terms for Non Executive Directors.

Executive Officers receive preferential rates of interest on loans and mortgages for personal use. Loans for commercial purposes attract
normal banking rates. Loans not qualifying for preferential rates attract normal arms length rates.

Deposits:

Deposits placed by related parties as at December 31, 1999 are as follows:-

Classification Balance
Proceeds of sale of Common Shares §17,850,000
Other time deposits 4,999 840
Savings balances 120,468
Current account credit balances 1,158,466
Total $24.128.774

Lease commitments to related parties are disclosed in General Information: Leases on page 60

INSPECTION OF DoOoCHUMENTS

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the offices of Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. and the offices of Graham, Thomp:
& Co, in Nassau during normal business hours from Monday to Friday (excluding public holidays).

1. Memorandum and Articles of Association

2. Certiticate of Incorporation

3. Certificate of Good Standing

4. Audited Financial Statements for the calendar years ending 1995 through 1999

5. Corporate Advisors’ letters referred to on page 61

6. Copy of the Sharcholders’ Register of Commonwealth Bank Limited as of March 31, 2000
7. Minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Members held on January 13, 2000
8. Board Resolution dated January 27, 2000 approving and granting consent to Prospectus

9. Copies of Real Estate Leases
10. Copy of the Sharcholders™ Register of Bahamas First Holdings Limited as of March 31, 2000
11. Copy of the Sharcholders’™ Register of Milo B. Butler and Sons Ltd. as of March 31, 2000

Page 62
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C ONSENT

We, the undersigned Directors of COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED, collectively and individually accept full

responsibility for the accuracy of the information given and confirm, h.1\‘in&br made all reasonable inquiries, that to the

best of our knowledge and beliel there are no other facts, the omission of which would make anv statement in this
Prospectus mislcading Consent given by Board Resolution dated January 27, 2000.

Y DL~

Tlmorl'fv Baswell Donaldson,
Executive Chairman

lan Andrew Jennings
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Lol

Trevor Bryan Thompson
Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary

o e

auus Carl Bethel

AN Aihlomern

George Clifford Culm

Vaughan \\'illﬂn Théﬂdore Higgs

= -
Roland Craig Symonette

z

William Battan Sands. Jr.
President and €hief Executive Officer

Michael Lancelot Barnett

Franklyn Augustus Butler, O.B.E.

ll]dt‘

w«—fl

Rupert Winer Roberts, Jr.

Vincent Yelverton D’

Theodore Brent Symonette



D

COMMONWEALTH BANK

{ ONDITIONS OF APPLICATION

AND ALLOTME_NT

A detachable application form for shares can be found at the end of this prospectus. Additional copies of the prospectus and application form
may be obtained from the following:

1. All branches of Commonwealth Bank Limited located within The Commonwealth of The Bahamas.

2. Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. located 2“d Floor, Goodmans Bay Corporate Centre West Street, Nassau,

Completed applications must be delivered to Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. (the Escrow Agent for the offering)
or any branch of Commonwealth Bank Limited and be accompanied by a remittance in the form of bank draft,
postal order or by cheque, crossed non-negotiable (cash not accepted) for the full amount of $6.00 per share
payable to Colina Financial Advisors Ltd. Direct debit payments (for the Bank’s customers) can be made by
completing the appropriate section on the reverse side of the application form.

lerms and conditions

Applications are subject to the following terms and conditions:

I The Directors reserve the right to reject, in whole or in part, any application.

2. Applications may only be made by eligible investors as described on page 5.

3 Applications must be completed in every respect and must be for a minimum of 50 shares and in increments of 50 thereafter,

4, The number of shares applied for must be paid for in full by bank dratt, postal order or by cheque at the time application is made,

> ) :
Basis of allotment

Allotment of shares will be at the absolute diseretion of the Directors of the Bank. The amount paid on application by any person whose
application is not accepted will be returned in full via post and if allotment is made for a lesser number of shares than the number applied
for the appropriate balance of the amount paid on application will be returned in the same way. All cheques are liable to be presented for
pavment by the Escrow Agent upon receipt. If less than 1,000,000 of the shares offered are subscribed for all application monies will be

returned in full,
Evidence of share ownership

Shareholders will be sent a confirmation of their holdings by Colina Financial Advisors Ltd., the Escrow Agent and Registrar and Transfer
Agent, within 15 working days of the closing of the offering period. Investors will have a book-entry record maintained by Colina Financial

Advisors Ltd. for their individual sharcholdings.

This confirmation should be kept in a sate plan- (as if it were a share certificate) but it will relieve the shareholder of the risk, expense and

concern relative to the safekeeping of a share certilicate.

With the creation of the Bahamas International Securities Exchange, having book entry share ownership records will allow shareholders
greater Hexibility in trading their shares on the proposed Exchange. The rights of ownership evidenced by book entry records are the same

as those evidenced by physical certificates.
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APPLICATION FORM - INDIVIDUAL

For Individual Applicant(s)

FOR COMMON SHARES OF
COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

Applications for a minimum of 50 shares will be accepted from April 3, 2000 until 5:00 p.m. on April 28, 2000 or until
the offer is terminated. Full payment for the shares subscribed must accompany this application. All cheques, bank
drafts or postal orders must be made payable to COLINA FINANCIAL ADVISORS LTD. CASH WILL NOT BE
ACCEPTED. Direct debit payments can be made by signing the authorisation on the reverse side of this form.

NUMBER OF SHARES REQUESTED: PAYMENT ENCLOSED: B$
(At B$6.00 per share for a minimum of 50 and in multiples of 50 thereafter)

SURNAME:

FIRST NAME(S):

() Bahamian Citizen () Permanent Resident  National Insurance or Passport Number

And if applicable, Co-Owner
SURNAME:

FIRST NAME(S):

() Bahamian Citizen ( ) Permanent Resident National Insurance or Passport Number

PLEASE REGISTER JOINT ACCOUNTS AS FOLLOWS (TICK ONE):
() JointTenants with Rights of Survivorship () Tenants in Common
(Joint Tenants with rights of survivorship will be used if no indication is made)

(Please Print the following Information)

P.O.BOX ;

ISLAND:

TELEPHONE NUMBER: WORK HOME
Please note the form of dividend payment preference:

() Dividend cheques to be mailed to above P.O.Box, or () cheques deposited to my bank:

Bank Name:

Bank Branch:

Account Number:

DECLARATION
The \pplimnt(s). 11_\' signing this app]icatiom acknowle dgv(h) receipt of the prospectus dated r\]n'i[ 3, 2000 and

make(s) the declarations as indicated on the reverse side of this application,

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE



¢

COMMONWEALTH BANK

AprrLICATION FOorM - INDIVIDUAL

FOR COMMON SHARES OF
COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

THE APPLICANT(S), BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION ON THE REVERSE SIDE, MAKE(S) THE FOLLOWING
DECLARATIONS:
1. The applicant is 18 years of age or older; and

2. The applicant is a citizen of The Bahamas or holds a permanent residency permit with the unrestricted right to
work in The Bahamas or is granted approval as an investor in The Bank by The Central Bank of The Bahamas; and

3. The applicant is not applying for the shares as nominee for any other person, corporation, trust or fund that

would not be an eligible investor.

BANK INSTRUCTIONS

Authority is hereby given to debit the following described Commonwealth Bank account, by the amount defined

overleal:-

Bank Branch:

Name ol Account:

Account Number:

Amount:

Signature Signature

Send completed application and remittance to:

Colina Financial Advisors Ltd.
2nd Floor, Goodmans Bay Corporate Centre, West Bay Street
P. O. Box CB 12407
Nassau, Bahamas
or

Any branch of Commonwealth Bank



COMBMONWEALTH BANK

ArrLICATION ForM - CompPaNy, TRusT or Funp

FOR USE BY A COMPANY, TRUST OR FUND
FOR COMMON SHARES OF
COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

Applications for a minimum of 50 shares will be accepted from April 3, 2000 until 5:00 p-m. on April 28,, 2000 or until
the offer is terminated. Full payment for the shares subscribed must accompany this application. All cheques, bank drafts
or postal orders must be made payable to COLINA FINANCIAL ADVISORS LTD. CASH WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

Direct debit payments can be made by signing the authorisation on the reverse side of this form.
) e slgiag

NUMBER OF SHARES REQUESTED: PAYMENT ENCLOSED: Bs
(At B$6.00 per share for a minimum of 50 and in multiples of 50 thereafter)

NAME:

CONTACT PERSON:

(Please Print the following Information)

PO.BOX :

ISLAND:

TELEPHONE NUMBER: WORK HOME

Please note the form of dividend pavment preference:
) I
Dividend cheques to be mailed to above P.O.Box, or ( cheques deposited to our bank:
q , q |

Bank Name:

Bank Branch:

Account Number:

DECLARATION

The Applicant(s), by signing this application, acknowledge(s) receipt of the prospectus dated April 3, 2000 and make(s) the

declarations as indicated on the reverse side of this application.

AUTHORISED SIGNATURE (S)
UNDER SEAL



¢

COMMONWEALTH BANK

AprprricaTION FORM - CompPANY, TRUST OR FUND

FOR USE BY A COMPANY, TRUST OR FUND
FOR COMMON SHARES OF
COMMONWEALTH BANK LIMITED

THE ENTITY, BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION ON THE REVERSE SIDE, MAKES THE FOLLOWING
DECLARATIONS:

If a Corporation:

The applicant is incorporated under the laws of The Bahamas and is resident for exchange control purposes; and
The applicant is wholly owned by individuals who are citizens of The Bahamas and/or permanent residents with the
unrestricted right to work or is granted approval as an investor in The Bank by The Central Bank of The Bahamas;
and

All necessary corporate actions have been taken to authorize the purchase of the shares.

The applicant is not applying for the shares as nominee for any other person, corporation, trust or fund that would

not be an eligible investor.

If a Trust or Pension Fund:

(]

Bencficiaries of the trust or fund are citizens or permanent residents of The Bahamas with the unrestricted right to
work or Bahamian resident companies owned by them and/or any other eligible trust or pension fund which is

granted approval as an investor in The Bank by The Central Bank of The Bahamas; and

Trustees of the trust and managers of the fund represent that they have the necessary power and all requisite actions

have been taken to enable them to effect the purchase of the shares.

The applicant is not applying for the shares as nominee for any other person, corporation, trust or fund that would

not be an eligible investor.

BANK INSTRUCTIONS

Authority is hereby given to debit the following described Commonwealth Bank account, by the amount defined

overleal:-

Bank Branch:

Name of Account:

Account Number:

Amount:

Signature Signature

&

Send completed application and remittance to:
Colina Financial Advisors L td.
2rd Floor, Goodmans Bay Corporate Centre, West Bay Street
P. O. Box CB 12407
Nassau, Bahamas
or

Anv branch of Commonwealth Bank



